A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, March 14, 2017
At
5:15 p.m.
In The
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Jennifer J. St. Amour
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, M1 49686
(231) 922-4940 ext. 201

Traverse City Light and Power Posting Date: March 10, 2017
1131 Hastings Street 3:00 p.m.
Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940




Light and Power Board 2 March 14, 2017
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial ifems
together to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board,
staff or the public may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and
placed elsewhere on the agenda for full discussion. Such requests will be automatically
respected. If an item is not removed firom the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses
on the agenda is approved by a single Board action adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 14, 2017.
(Approval recommended) (p.4)

b. Consideration of conceptual approval of 60 month Lease Agreement with Third Coast
Bakery, LL.C. (Approval recommended) (Myers-Beman) (p.7)

c. Consideration of approving an Organizational Chart. (Approval recommended)
(Arends) (p.12)

Ttems Removed From Consent Calendar
a.

3. Unfinished Business

a. Consideration of an Amended Six Year Capital Improvements Plan — 2017, (Schimpke)

(.14)
b. Consideration of Awarding Bids for BW-31 Rebuild. (GRP Engineering/Schimpke)

1. BW-31 Distribution Rebuild Project: Construction Bids. (GRP
Engineering/Schimpke) (p.18)

2. BW-31 Distribution Rebuild Project: Conductor & Materials Bids. (GRP
Engineering/Schimpke) (p.21)

3. BW-31 Distribution Rebuild Project: Wood Poles Bids. (GRP
Engineering/Schimpke) (p.24)

4, New Business

a. Consideration of Amending Board Rule No. 1- Regular Meetings. (Arends) (p.27)

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.




Light and Power Board 3 March 14, 2017
Regular Meeting
From Staff.

1. Presentation of Franklin Energy Proposal. (Arends) (p.30)
2. Presentation of the Electric and Fiber Fund Budgets. (Myers-Beman) (p.53 & 66)

3. Presentation of the Rate Study. (Myers-Beman) (p.69)
4. Presentation of the December 31, 2016 Financial Statements. (Myers-Beman)

(p.74)
From Board.

1. Executive Director Review Process. (Geht — Verbal)

7. Public Comment

/js




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, Februaryl4, 2017

Board Members -
Present: Jan Geht, Pat McGuire, Jeff Palisin, Amy Shamroe,
John Taylor, Tim Werner
Absent: Bob Spence

Ex Officio Member -

Present: Marty Colburn, City Manager

en, Kelli Schroeder, Pete

Others: Tim Arends, Karla Myers: :
Tony Chaltland Gabe Talaga, Jennifer St.

Schimpke, Scott Menhat’
Amour

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by Chait

None.

Item 3 on the Agenda being Unfinished Business

None.

Item 4 on the Agenda being New Business

a. Removed.



TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 February 14, 2017

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications

a.

b.

From Legal Counsel.

From Staff,

1.

. Presentation on the Fiber to the Ple

Presentation on Energy Efficiency Revolving Loan Fund Annual Report by Venture
North.

The following individuals addressed the Board

Tim Arends, Executive Director i
Laura Galbraith, Executive Director, Ventlue N01t11

se Feasibility Report.

Gary Brooks; non=ratcpayer
¢, State Director for Gov’t Affairs Charter Communications, non-

ratepayer

Rob Newling, Frontier Computer 1T, non-ratepayer
Derek Smith, CEO, Naveego, Inc., non-ratepayer
Josh Lotan, non-ratepayer

Jim Selby, Aspen Wireless, President, non-ratepayer

7:28 p.m. W. Peter Doren left the meeting.
7:33 p.m. John Taylor left the meeting.




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 February 14, 2017

Chairman Geht removed items 6b (3) and 6b (4) from the agenda.
3. Removed.
4. Removed.
c. From Board.

Amy Shamroe commends the staff of TCL&P on being good representatives to the
community.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

There being no objection, Chairman Geht declared the mg djourned at 7.51 p.m.

Tim Arends, Secretaty,
/is . LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board

From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: March 2, 2017

Subject: Hall Street Tenant Lease Agreement

Staff is requesting to receive conceptual approval of a draft lease agreement between Traverse City Light &
Power and Third Coast Bakery, LLC for the tenant space at 130 Hall Street.

Third Coast Bakery, LLC is a local company that has been in business in the region for many years. They
plan to continue to bake and offer their allergy free and lifestyle friendly baked gourmet goods at this
location. Their website is www.thirdcoastbakedgoods.com and additionally, a reference sheet is included in
your packet on the bakery.

There are terms related to parking that still need to be finalized, but the potential tenant would like assurance
the lease will be approved, to allow them to provide proper time notification regarding termination of the
lease with their current landlord. It is tentatively planned they will commence the lease the middle of April
2017, with an opening in May 2017, with the final lease brought before the Board at the April meeting for
approval. This will include additional information on the parking details yet to be finalized.

Staff recommends conceptual approval of a 60 month lease at $15 per square foot per month, which equates
to a first year monthly lease amount of $1,937.50 or first year annual amount of $23,250 with an annual
escalation rate of 1.75%. The total lease revenue over the next five years will be $130,643.19. The
brokerage fee for placing this tenant is $6,532.16, or 5% of the total lease revenue. The lease’s monthly
rental rate reflects current market rate in the area and allows for inflationary increases on an annual basis.

This item is on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed non-controversial. Approval of this item on the Consent
Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendations.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying questions, it
should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion of the agenda for full
discussion. Ifafter Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would be
appropriate:

(MOTION ON NEXT PAGE)




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD AUTHORIZE CONCEPTUAL APPROVAL OF THE
DRAFT LEASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIRD COAST BAKERY, LLC TO
PROVIDE NOTIFICATION TO THEIR CURRENT LANDLORD REGARDING TERMINATION
OF LEASE. THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR WILL BRING BACK A FINAL LEASE
AGREEMENT WITH THIRD COAST BAKERY, LL.C. AT THE APRIL BOARD MEETING FOR
THE TENANT SPACE AT 130 HALL STREET FOR A PERIOD OF 60 MONTHS SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL.




March 14,2017

THIRD COAST BAKERY

Gluten-Free | Dairy-Free | Soy-Free | Vegan | 100% Delicious!

What We Bake:

Every recipe hand crafted in
the kitchen of Third Coast
Bakery features premium non-
GMO ingredients, ancient
grains, dairy-free milk
alternatives, raw & organic
sweeteners, pure chocolate,
fresh fruits, and healthy fats.
Our menu is 100% gluten-
free, dairy-free, soy-free and
vegan. Corn-free and grain-
free options are coming soon!

Our Menu

Breads & Biscuits

Savory and Sweet Rolls
Crackers

Deep Dish Pies
Cheesecakes (yes, vegan!)
Donuts

Scones

Cookies

Bars

Brownies

Muffins

Sweet Loaves

Granola Bars

Cakes & Cupcakes
Wedding Cakes

Special Occasion Cakes
Custom Orders

Gift Baskets... and more!

Full of Flavor, Free of Worry

Third Coast Bakery is the only full-service allergen-safe bakery
in Northern Michigan. Started in 2010 by Heather Burson, the
bakery now supplies area restaurants, grocery stores, cafes,
farmers’ markets and even several branches of Munson Medical
Center.

“This bakery was born from one simple recipe out of my home
kitchen. The idea was simple - to provide delicious, allergen-free
food to a largely underserved population. With plenty of
grassroots support, the idea flourished. Four years later, we're
proud to be setting the bar for top-quality, allergen-safe baking in
Northern Michigan. Our customers drive from all corners of the
state to purchase our products and every day our phone rings

269.420.4490 * Email: heather@thirdcoastbakedqoods.com




THIRD

E
<VE NEW 1y, Ve o BAK\"\(’

Where to Buy Our
Products:

Acoustic Mead Tap Room

The Inn at Black Star Farms
Burritt's Fresh Markets

Cavallino Cafe at Hagerty Center
Centre Street Cafe

Cornerstone Coffee

Cuppa Joe Cafe

Cuppa Joe Drive Thru

Edson Farms

Espresso Bay

Harpo's Coffee Cafe

Hearth & Vine Cafe

Leland Mercantile

Munson Community Health Ctr
Munson Cowell Family Cancer Ctr
Munson Hospital Cafeteria
Munson Patient Room Service
Notably Natural

Oryana Natural Foods Market
Potter’s Bakery

Red Door Coffee

Suttons Bay Farmer's Market

The Indoor Farmer’s Market
Traverse City Farmer's Market
Yen Yoga & Fitness

And Online By Visiting:
www.thirdcoastbakedgoods.com

March 14, 2017

with customers asking where to find our storefront,” explains
Heather. “Business has
exploded and it’s time for
a retail space.”

Third Coast Bakery is
unique in that other
commercial food
establishments cannot,
according to FDA laws,
safely produce allergen-
free products in their
mixed-use kitchens.
— - Cross-contamination

risks and rigorous
controls prevent them from doing so. Third Coast has
extensively trained and set up controlled facilities to safely
produce its products.

“Our customers include celiacs, vegans, vegetarians, cancer
patients, the autistic, parents of children with ADD/ADHD,
those with anaphylactic allergies, autoimmune diseases and
chronic dietary restrictions; most of all, anyone who simply wants
to follow a healthy diet. We'’re here to help meet that demand,”
emphasizes Heather. “Everyone is welcome at our table,
regardless of food allergies or dietary restrictions.”

Currently operating out of a commercial kitchen in the heart of
Leelanau County, the bakery has far outgrown the space, with a
waitlist for additional wholesale accounts. A new location in
Traverse City that would not only continue to house its wholesale
baking operations, but also provide a retail center for customers,
while allowing for future growth.

The relocation into Traverse City will bring an estimated 8-10
additional positions in baking, packaging, delivery, customer
service and sales. “We love our
community! The local support has
helped us thrive in our first four
years. We give back by sourcing
local, supplying local and hiring
local. The need is overwhelming

and we’re ready to meet it.” -

269.420.4490 * Email: heather@thirdcoastbakedgoods.com

10




(This Page Intentionally Left Blank)

11




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

EST. 1912 |

To: Light & Power Board

From: Timothy Arends, Executive Director
Date: March 8, 2017

Subject: Organizational Chart

Included in your packet is a revised Organizational Chart with the following recommended changes:

e The Metering Department will no longer report directly to the Manager of Operations &
Engineering. These employees will now report to Tony Chartrand, System Engineer/Key
Accounts.

e The Scheduling & Operations Coordinator will report directly to Rod Solak, Line
Superintendent, with indirect reporting to remain with the Controller.

These changes will not affect current staffing levels.

This is being brought before you per the language in the Charter that requires amendments to the
organizational structure be approved by the Board.

This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by staff to be a non-controversial
item. Approval of the item on the Consent Calendar means you agree with staff’s
recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, the item should be placed on the “Items Removed from the Consent Calendar” portion

of the agenda for full discussion.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation, the following motion would be
appropriate:

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE BOARD APPROVES THE CHANGES TO THE ORGANIZATIONAL CHART,
AS PRESENTED.




()

SYOLYY¥3dO
I3LSAS JIM.L0313

() -
NYIZINHD3L Y3814

()

LSIVID3dS |
SIN3LSAS H43LNdINOD

@
SIYNDIS

13

(INVIVA)

ONPIVLS
- LNV1SISSY 01314

ONI¥ILIN

()

(t)
HOSIA¥IANS @1314

SINNODIY ATN /
YIINIONT INTLSAS

(t)

(1)
ADOTONHIZL™®

WOD3T3AL 40 YIDOVNYIN

SADNYIVA (2)
(1)
SYIIHOM INIT

(€)
NOUONTOYd ¥3MOd

(t)
LNIONILNIY3ANS INIT

(T) YOLYNIQHOOD
SNOILYY3dO
B ONINAIHIS

(1)
Y3433 IHOLS AvaH

(LNYIVA)

NVIDINHD3L
Q7314 YOIN3S

()

ONIY3INIONT
8 SNOLLYY3dO
40 ¥3DVYNYIN

.

(1)

ANVLSISSY NIWAY

| |
(1)

YO12341a JALLND3X3

M T3ISNNOD TvY3IN3D

S4OL33410 40 Qyvos

(t)

SNOILY2INNIWINOD
'8 $324NOS3Y
NYIWNH 30 Y3DVNYIN

(t)
¥3TIOYLNOD

L Ll e R o |

(£z) 56T B30T YNMmN
(zT) o35 daneasiujwpy

(sg)aunod safojdwa enoy  :puIBa

LTOT ‘20 Y2Je uo pasinay
:uo pJeog syl Aq panocidde sy

Hey) jeuoneziuesio

HIMOd X LHOI'T

ALID 3Is¥3IANAVIEL




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

EST. 1912

To: Light & Power Board
From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations and Engineering
Date: March 7, 2017

Subject: Six Year Capital Improvements Plan - AMENDMENT

When the original Six Year Capital Improvements Plan - 2017 was developed and finalized earlier
this year care was taken to properly prioritize projects on a calendar year basis. On February 13™,
the load tap changer (LTC) of the Barlow #1 substation malfunctioned as the LTC incorrectly
reduced the transformer output voltage by the maximum ten (10) percent. TCLP staff noticed this
voltage change and responded very quickly and manually adjusted the output voltage. No
customer complaints were received as is sometimes the case when improper voltage is supplied
into an electric system. TCLP has had issues for the last few years with this LTC but not to this
extent.

Based on the above, Staff recommends amending the Six Year Capital Improvement Plan as
follows:
o Move the replacement of Barlow transformer #1 from 2018/19 to 2017/18. Budgetary cost
is $750,000.
e Move the replacement of Barlow transformer #2 from 2018/19 to 2017/18. Budgetary cost
is $750,000. Moving transformer #2 to the same year as transformer #1 will allow TCLP
to get a better prices for the transformers and installation as was the original plan.

In addition, Staff proposes delaying the following projects:

e Move the replacement of Cass Rd. transformer #1 from 2017/18 to 2018/19. Budgetary
cost $750,000.

e Move replacement of the Cass Rd. substation exits (# 21, 23, 30 and 31) from 2017/18 to
2018/19. Budgetary cost is $215,000.

e Move replacement of the Barlow substation exits (# 22, 23, 30 and 31) from 2017/18 to
2018/19. Budgetary cost is $200,000.

e Move the rebuilding of Parsons circuit PC-32 from 2017/18 to 2018/19. Budgetary cost is
$350,000.

Summarizing, the above actions would delay budgetary dollars of $1,515,000 from 2017/2018 to
2018/19 and move up $1,500,000 from 2018/19 to 2017/18—essentially a net change of zero.

If you agree with Staff’s recommendation the following motion would be appropriate:

14



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES AN AMENDMENT TO THE SIX YEAR CAPITAL
PLAN TO DELAY CERTAIN CAPITAL PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,515,000
FROM 2017/18 TO 2018/19 AND MOVE FROM 2018/19 TO 2017/18 THE
REPLACEMENT OF BOTH BARLOW SUBSTATION TRANSFORMERS IN THE
AMOUNT OF $1,500,000.

3

15




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

AMENDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 2017

ELECTRIC FUND FISCAL YEARS
Sum of Amount Column Labels
[Row Labels 5 2017-18 2018-19 . 2019220 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Grand Total
Transmission $ 475,000.00 $ 475,000.00 $ 430,000.00 $ 615,000.00 §  1,995,000.00
Transmission Line Reconstruction 475,000.00 475,000.00 430,000.00 615,000.00 1,995,000.00
Cass Road Substation to Barlow Junction 615,000.00 615,000.00
1.3 Miles rebuild 615,000.00 615.000.00
Barlow Substation to Parsons Substation 475,000.00 475,000.00 950,000.00
2.7 Miles rebuild 475,000.00 475,000.00 950,000.00
Hall Street Substation to Cass Road Substation 430,000.00 430,000.00
2.8 Miles rebuild 430,000.00 430,000.00
Substation 1, 1,500,000.00 1,310,000.00 1,560,000.00 1,610,000.00 5,980,000.00
Substation Transformer Upgrades 1,500,000.00 750,000.00 2,250,000.00
Barlow #1 Transformer 750,000.00 750,000.00
Cass Road #1 Transformer 750,000.00 750,000.00
Barlow #2 Transformer 750,000.00 750,000.00
Substation Switching Stations 1,560,000.00 1,610,000.00 3,170,000.00
Parsons Substation 1,560,000.00 1,560,000.00
Barlow Substation 1,610,000.00 1,610,000.00
Substation Circuit Exits (New) 560,000.00 560,000.00
Parsons Substation 145,000.00 145,000.00
Barlow Substation 200,000.00 200,000.00
Cass Road Substation 215,000.00 215,000.00
Distribution 1,601,591.00 4,155,591.00 3,731,591.00 4,136,591.00 3,423,591.00 4,196,591.00 21,245,546.00
Distribution Circuit Rebuild 1,189,000.00 650,000.00 980,000.00 1,117,000.00 1,815,000.00 5,751,000.00
Grandview Parkway 650,000.00 650,000.00 1,300,000.00
Install new 750 MCM CU URG & Padmount Equipment along Grandview Pkway & Behind Bldgs North of Front St - 2.0 Miles 650,000.00 650,000.00 1,300,000.00
PC-32 Circuit 350,000.00 400,000.00 750,000.00
OH 8th St/Hastings St Area East to Munson Avenue 400,000.00 400,000.00
OH East Bay Blvd & East Ave 350,000.00 350,000.00
BW-30 & PC-32 Circuits 189,000.00 189,000.00
OH Parsons St & Airport Access to Munson Avenue - 1.72 Miles 189,000.00 189,000.00
HL-33 Cireuit 400,000.00 725,000.00 725,000.00 1,850,000.00
69 KV Underbuild along Wadsworth St from 5th to 13th St - .78 Miles 400,000.00 725,000.00 725,000.00 1,850,000.00
SS-32 Circuit 200,000.00 200,000.00
LaFranier Rd from South Sub to Hammond Road - .82 Miles 200,000.00 200,000.00
BW-30 Circuit 285,000.00 285,000.00
OH Hastings St & Carver St from Parsons St to Woodmere Avenue - 1.09 Miles 285,000.00 285,000.00
CD-21 Circuit 95,000.00 95,000.00
OII Cass St & 8th to 14th Street - .49 Miles 95,000.00 95,000.00
CD-31 Circuit 125,000.00 125,000.00
Replace Poles & Install Additional Poles on CD31 along US31 from 14th St South and on Franke Rd from Silver Lake Rd South to US 31 to improve clearance 125,000.00 125,000.00
HL-22 Circuit 185,000.00 185,000.00
OH alley north of 8th St from Lake Ave East to Railroad Ave - .45 Miles 185,000.00 185,000.00
PC-22 Circuit 82,000.00 370,000.00 452.000.00
OH in back lot area from Parsons Rd to Munson Ave - .48 Miles 82,000.00 82,000.00
OH Munson Avenue from Davis Street to 3 Mile Road - 1.43 Mile 370,000.00 370,000.00

3/7/2017 1 6 ]



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

AMENDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN 2017

ELECTRIC FUND FISCAL YEARS
Sum of Amount Column Labels
Row Labels A 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 Grand Total
PC-23 Circuit 320,000.00 320,000.00
OH Along Munson Avenue from Davis Street to Three Mile Road - 1.19 Miles 320,000.00 320,000.00
Overhead to Underground Conversion Projects 700,000.00 725,000.00 750,000.00 775,000.00 800,000.00 3,750,000.00
Line Improvements, Extensions and New Services 1,000,000.00 1,050,000.00 1,100,000.00 1,150,000.00 1,200,000.00 1,250,000.00 6,750,000.00
Critical and Large Customers (New) 270,000.00 410,000.00 925,000.00 925,000.00 2,530,000.00
Hartman Road Overhead Tie (New) 475,000.00 475,000.00
High Pressure Sodium to LED System Replacements 331,591.00 331,591.00 331,591.00 331,591.00 331,591.00 331,591.00 1,989,546.00
Facilities and Other 150,000.00 100,000.00 250,000.00
Hastings Service Center Facility Improvements (New) 150,000.00 100,000.00 250,000.00
Parking Lot 100,000.00 100,000.00
Datacenter Upgrades 150,000.00 150,000.00
Joint TCL&P, City of Traverse City and DDA Projects 2,375,000.00 75,000.00 1,340,000.00 - 3,790,000.00
Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) 1,900,000.00 1,900,000.00
Upgrade Front Street Lighting Circuits and Receptacles 1,340,000.00 1,340,000.00
Financial Software (New) 25,000.00 75,000.00 100,000.00
Park Street Streetscapes Lighting 100,000.00 100,000.00
Eighth Street Streetscapes Lighting (New) - -
Division Street Streetscapes Lighting (New) - -
Cass & Lake Street Streetscapes Lighting 350,000.00 350,000.00
West Front Streetscapes Lighting (New) - -
Grand Total $ 5,626,591.00 §$ 5,640,591.00 § 5,766,591.00 $ 6,221,591.00 $ 5,193,591.00 $ 4,811,591.00 $ 33,260,546.00
I
INOTES: B ‘ B

1) THIS WORKSHEET IS FOR ILLUSTRATION PURPOSES AND ONLY IS SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE PLAN,

2)ACTUAL FISCAL YEAR THAT A PROJECT MAY BE UNDERTAKEN MAY DIFFER FROM THE FISCAL YEAR DEPICTED IN THIS SPREADSHEET. DOLLAR
AMOUNTS ARE ESTIMATES FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND ARE NOT A PART OF THE OFFICIAL PLAN.

LIGHTING OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE POLICY.

3)STREET LIGHTING PROJECTS ARE SUBJECT TO FUNDING REQUIREMENTS PER THE DECORATIVE LIGHTING POLICY AND STREET

3/7/2017




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

RN

To: Light & Power Board .
From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering ¥
Date: March 8, 2017

Subject: BW-31 Distribution Rebuild Project: Construction Bids

On Tuesday, March 7, 2017, three bids were received for construction for the BW-31
Distribution Rebuild Project and one contractor did not bid. The bid prices are:

Contractor
CC Power $1,195,166.50
Kent Power $1,392,261.95
Newkirk Electric $1,454,779.70
Hydaker-Wheatlake No Bid

For your review, attached is GRP’s letter recommending CC Power along with a bid
tabulation. Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bid from CC Power in
the amount of $1,195,166.50, and recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a
construction agreement for their construction services.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff's recommendation then the following motion
would be appropriate.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE A
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,195,166.50 WITH CC POWER,
LLC FOR THE BW-31 DISTRIBUTION LINE REBUILD PROJECT; SUBJECT TO
APPROVAL AS TO SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND AS TO FORM
BY GENERAL COUNSEL; AND FURTHER AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
TO APPROVE CHANGE ORDERS IN THE BEST INTERESTS OF THE UTILITY.

18



GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

March 7, 2017
16-0831.01

Mr. Pete Schimpke

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: BW31 Circuit Rebuild
Contractor Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Pete:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed reviewing the bids submitted on March 7, 2017 for construction of
the BW31 Circuit Rebuild project. Of the four contractors solicited for bids, three (3) bids were received.
CC Power, LLC submitted the low bid for the project in the amount of $1,195,166.50. A complete bid
tabulation is attached to this letter.

CC Power, LLC has submitted a complete and conforming bid including the subcontractor list. The list
of subcontractors has been reviewed by TCL&P staff and no exceptions were noted. CC Power’s bid is
significantly above the original project cost estimate which was based on replacement of 192 poles. Final
project design included replacement of 324 poles and associated hardware and conductor. This nearly
70% increase in project scope is the likely explanation for bids being over the estimate.

GRP Engineering, Inc. sees no reason not to accept their bid in the full amount for this project. Please
contact me should you have any questions regarding this evaluation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc,

TP Peidikd.

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.

Project Manager
6290 Jupiter Ave NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont, Ml 49306 Petoskey, MI 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683

F: 616.285.6448 F: 231.439.9698



OWNER:

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
1131 HASTINGS STREET
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686

BID TABULATION

BW31 CIRCUIT REBUILD

ENGINEER:

GRP ENGINEERING, INC.

459 BAY STREET
PETOSKEY, MI 49770

BIDDERS

BID
SECURITY

TOTAL CONTRACTOR
BASE BID PRICE

ADDENDUM #1 & #2

REMARKS

CC Power
P.O. Box 2028
Kalkaska, M| 49646

10% Bond

$1,195,166.50

Yes

Low Bid

The Hydaker-Wheatlake Company
420 N. Rolh Street
Reed City, Ml 40677

No Bid

Kent Power
©0 Spring St
Kent City, M| 49330

10% Bond

$1,392,261.95

Yes

Newkirk Electric, Inc.
1875 Roberts Streat
Muskegon, MI 49442

10% Bond

$1,454,779.70

Yes

This is to cerify that at 11:00a m., local tme on Tuesday, March 7, 2017, the bids tabulated herein were publicly opened and read.

16-0831.01

GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP Plesdedd

BW321 Circuit Rebuld Bid Tab

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.

372017

20




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

KRR

To: Light & Power Board

From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering fg,c
Date: March 8, 2017

Subject: BW-31 Distribution Rebuild Project: Conductor & Material Bids

On Tuesday, March 7, 2017, three bids were received for conductor and material the BW-
31 Distribution Rebuild Project and two vendors did not bid. The bid prices are:

Vendor
Power Line Supply $202,077.95
RESCO $221,596.68
WESCO incomplete bid

For your review, attached is GRP's letter recommending Power Line Supply along with a
bid tabulation. Staff concurs with GRP’s recommendation to accept the bid from Power
Line Supply in the amount of $202,077.95, and recommends the Board authorize the
issuance of a purchase order for the purchase of conductor and material for the BW-31
Distribution Rebuild Project.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff's recommendation then the following motion
would be appropriate.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ,

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A
PURCHASE ORDER TO POWER LINE SUPPLY IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,077.95 FOR
CONDUCTOR AND MATERIAL FOR THE BW-31 DISTRIBUTION LINE REBUILD
PROJECT.

21




GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

March 7, 2017
16-0831.01

Mr. Pete Schimpke

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: BW31 Circuit Rebuild
Conductor/Material Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Pete: ©

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the Conductor & Line Hardware bids received for
the BW3 1 Circuit Rebuild project. Of the five vendors invited to submit bids for purchase of this material,
three bids were received. Although WESCO’s bid appears low, there bid was incomplete as multiple
items were not bid. Power Line Supply (PLS) submitted the lowest price bid with delivery meeting the
project deadlines. List of total bid prices from all vendors is shown below.

Vendor Total
Power Line Supply ~ $202,077.95
RESCO $221,596.68
WESCO $158,495.21 (Incomplete bid)

GRP Engineering, Inc. sees no reason for TCL&P to not accept the bid from Power Line Supply. Please
contact me should you have any additional questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

MTEDP Ploshdh

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

6290 Jupiter Avenue NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont MI 49306 Petoskey Ml 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683

F: 231.439.9698 F: 231.439.9698



BID TABULATION

OWNER: ENGINEER:
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER BW31 CIRCUIT REBUILD GRP ENGINEERING, INC,
1131 HASTINGS STREET CONDUCTOR & LINE HARDWARE 459 BAY STREET
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686 PETOSKEY, M| 49770
BIDDERS BID PRICE REMARKS
Anlxter
1100 Old State Rd No Bid
Mattoon, IL 61938
Irby
5846 Venture Way No Bid

ML Pleasant, M| 48858

Power Line Supply
420 Roth Stresl $202,077.95
Reed City, MI 49677

RESCO
2250 Pinghurst Dr $221,596.68
Middlelon, W1 53562

WESCO
3440 Dunckel Rd $158,495.21 Incomplete bid.
Lansing, MI 48911

This is to certify that at 11:00a.m,, local tme on Tuesday, March 7, 2017, the bids tabulated herein were publicly opened and read.

GRP Engineering, Inc.

TP e

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.

16-0831.01 BW31 Ckt Rebuitd Material 372017

23




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

R

To: Light & Power Board

From: Pete Schimpke, Manager of Operations & Engineering ?@/
Date: March 8, 2017

Subject: BW-31 Distribution Rebuild Project: Wood Pole Bids

On Tuesday, March 7, 2017, five bids were received for wood poles for the BW-31
Distribution Rebuild Project. All vendors submitted a bid. The bid prices are:

Vendor
Power Line Supply $109,473.00
RESCO $ 95,340.00
Bell Lumber $104,295.00
Bridgewell Resources $ 99,786.00
Thomasson Company $ 98,586.50

For your review, attached is GRP’s letter recommending Thomasson along with a bid
tabulation. Note the discussion regarding delivery time for poles if purchased from
RESCO. We believe the very long delivery time is not acceptable to TCLP as this is a
major construction project and a delay of 2-4 months is not acceptable—especially since
the delay is in the construction season time period. Therefore, Staff concurs with GRP'’s
recommendation to accept the bid from Thomasson in the amount of $98,586.50 and
recommends the Board authorize the issuance of a purchase order for the purchase of
wood distribution poles for the BW-31 Distribution Rebuild Project.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff's recommendation then the following motion
would be appropriate.

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY i

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A
PURCHASE ORDER TO THOMASSON COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $98,586.50
FOR WOOD DISTRIBUTION POLES FOR THE BW-31 DISTRIBUTION LINE REBUILD
PROJECT.

24




GRP

Engineering, Inc. Power Utility & Electrical Engineering

March 8, 2017
16-0831.01

Mr. Pete Schimpke

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686

RE: BW31 Circuit Rebuild
Wood Pole Bid Evaluation & Recommendation

Dear Pete:

GRP Engineering, Inc. has completed our evaluation of the wood distribution pole bids received for the
BW31 Circuit Rebuild project. Of the five vendors invited to submit bids for purchase of these poles, all
responded with complete bids. Although RESCO submitted the lowest total price, their initial delivery of
poles would not occur for a minimum of 8 weeks after receiving order. Due to the time constraints of this
project, pole delivery is required by April 1*. Thomasson Company, the second low bid, can start delivery
within 7 — 14 days after receiving the order. List of total bid prices from all vendors is shown below.

Vendor Total
Bell Lumber $104,295.00
Bridgewell Resources $99,786.00
Power Line Supply  $109,473.00
RESCO $95,340.00
Thomasson Company $98,586.50

GRP Engineering, Inc. recommends for TCL&P to accept the bid from Thomasson Company as they are
second low bid and meet required delivery time. Please contact me should you have any additional
questions regarding this evaluation and recommendation.

Sincerely,
GRP Engineering, Inc.

HTED P Pleshedd

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.
Project Manager

6290 Jupiter Avenue NE Suite D 459 Bay Street
Belmont Ml 49306 Petoskey MI 49770
P: 616.942.7183 www.grp-engineering.com P: 231.439.9683
F: 231.439.9698 F: 231.439.9698

29




OWNER;

TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

1131 HASTINGS STREET
TRAVERSE CITY, M| 49686

BID TABULATION

BW31 CIRCUIT REBUILD
WOOD DISTRIBUTION POLES

ENGINEER:

GRP ENGINEERING, INC.
459 BAY STREET
PETOSKEY, MI 49770

BIDDERS

BID PRICE

REMARKS

Bell Lumber
P.O. Box 120786
New Brighton, MN 55112

$104,295.00

Bridgewell Resources
333 S, State St
Reed City, MI 49677

$99,786.00

Hydrolake/Power Line Supply
420 Roth Street
Reed City, M1 49677

$109,473.00

RESCO
2250 Pinehurst Dr
Middleton, W1 53562

$95,340.00

Low Bid
Minimum 8 weeks for
inilial delivery.

Thomasson Company
P.O. Box 490
Philadelphia, MS

$98,586.50

7 - 14 days for initial delivery

This is to certify that at 11:00a.m., local time on Tuesday, March 7, 2017, the bids labulated herein were publicly opened and read.

16-0831.01

GRP Engineering, Inc.

 MTEDP Pl

BW31 Ckt Rebuild Wood Poles

Michael P. McGeehan, P.E.

82017

26




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

¢Sl f9]‘2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To:

From:
Date:

Light & Power Board
Tim Arends, Executive Director
February 28, 2017

Subject: Board Rules Amendment

At the request of the Board Chairman, staff is proposing to amend Board Rule #1 — Regular Meetings. A
copy of the Board Rules is included in the packet where it is stated, “Regular meetings of the Light and
Power Board shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of every month at 5:15 P.M in the
Commission Chambers of the Governmental Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City.” The
Charter only requires that the Board shall establish a regular monthly schedule of meetings.

The proposed amendment would be to reduce the number of meetings from two to one leaving the
discretion to the Board of what day of the month it would be subject to availability of the commission
room. A calendar showing availability is included in your packet.

The benefits of amending this rule include:

I

Staff at times is challenged in finding justifiable board meeting agenda items and has had
to cancel board meetings in the past because of lack of substantive issues. By reducing the
number of meetings, it eliminates the necessity for staff to find acceptable agenda items for
board meetings, but rather provides the ability for staff to bring before the board for
consideration agenda items leading to more productive and efficient use of both staff and the
board’s time. If additional meetings are needed in a month, as done in the past, staff can call a
special meeting with proper notice to the Board members.

Staff will have more time to dedicate towards ongoing operations and strategic plan
initiatives by reducing the amount of time spent on agenda items for board consideration that
include preparing memos, reviewing information, preparing packets, posting of materials along
with delivery of board packets.

One issue to consider with only having one board meeting each month, meetings may
take longer than those in the past because the amount of items for consideration will likely
increase. However, the benefit is the volunteer board will have their time commitment reduced
from two nights a month to one night.

Staff recommends the Board to amend the Board Rule #1 and reduce the number of regular meetings
from two to one per month. If the Board agrees with staff’s recommendation, the following motion is
appropriate:

(MOTION ON NEXT PAGE)

217




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY ;

THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE AMENDMENT OF BOARD RULE #1 - REGULAR
MEETINGS TO READ, “REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

SHALL BE HELD ON THE IN THE

COMMISSION CHAMBERS OF THE GOVERNMENTAL CENTER, 400 BOARDMAN

AVENUE, TRAVERSE CITY,” EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY.




Buippom 3y - wdy

1€ )

[ 0¢])

208 Lo -wdosg:s

62

[ 82 ]

d2I1oL - wdy

[ 22]

92 ]

sz

Buippam 3y - wdy

K

plljumolg - weg

e

IVID3dS - wdog:s

22 ]

12

Ao -wdge:s

fiunos - wdpg:z

| 0z )

T

Buipling - weqg:g

Ao -wdy

[ 61)

(81 ]

[21]

B syled ~wdg
ueswpieog - wdgeg:
AAIINORXT - WEQRE: L L
|edjusg - L -weg

le20T) o431 - weg

ERA

jo pieog - wdpg:s

(54 ]

KT

d®7oL - wdy

(€1 ]

Ao -wdy

Buiaes ybilAeq )

b ]

(01

uoisuad - wdgg:y

[ 6 |

Apmig p0g - wdpe:g

KR

5700

Buiuuejd Ao - wdyy

Bu

[ 9]

Ao -wdy
IPPOAN 3Y - wegl

[ ¥ ]

=

syied Al - wdgg:

w

v -wdpg:g

0Q= - weQg:L

[ 2]

40 pJeog - wdgg:s

4]

[ 82 )

[ 22)

3es

144

(swiy uiayses) 210z Jew

ST

g

any

u
sejels pajun ul SAEPIIOH ‘SI9GWEYD-PUZ-DAOD

Ol
‘s1oB3iuo

~
~




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

tﬁ‘. TQ)‘?

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: February 28, 2017

Subject: Franklin Energy Proposal

A few meetings ago the board directed staff to come up with a long-term solution for the Energy Waste
Reduction Program required by the new energy law passed by the State of Michigan (formerly known as
Energy Optimization Program), staff has solicited a direct proposal from Franklin Energy of Michigan,
LLC (“Franklin Energy”) to continue operating the TCL&P Energy Smart Program from 2018 through
2022,

Financially, the proposal keeps the 2018 fee flat with calendar year 2017 following with a 2.32%
increase for the calendar years 2019 through 2022. The total potential that can be earned by Franklin
Energy is $187,712 in 2018, $192,060 in 2019, $196,518 in 2020, $201,087 in 2021 and $205,771 in
year 2022. Franklin Energy only earns 100% of the fixed fee component when the kWh savings are
achieved. If the kWh’s are not achieved there is a 10% hold back. The performance fee component is
based on the pro rata share of kWh savings achieved, in other words, if they only achieve 75% of the
kWh’s saved they only earn 75% of the performance fee component. A breakdown of the fixed and
performance fee components is in the proposal included for your review.

The benefits of this proposal include the following:

1. Franklin Energy has operated this program for the last six years and has obtained an
understanding of the local market through creation of business relationships with local
contractors and customers. This leads to operating efficiencies over creating a new business
relationship with another organization. Franklin Energy also has a local presence.

2; They will continue to work with staff in providing the most cost effective rebate programs
for both the customer and TCL&P, based on recommendations from the Navigant Study.
3. The proposal provides for an a la carte option, which allows for the utility to choose on an

annual basis the programs they would like Franklin Energy to operate giving the utility the
ability to bring programs in house in the future.

4, Staff learned from Michigan Public Power Agency they went out for bids for this service last
year and Franklin Energy was the low bidder providing sufficient information to TCL&P that
staff deemed it unnecessary to do a formal solicitation of bids.

Staff from Franklin Energy will be in attendance at the meeting to answer any technical questions you
may have and staff will be looking for direction from the Board of how they would like to proceed with
the Energy Waste Reduction Program.

30




2

Em}ldh—]ﬁlergy

WHEN Eocpecriience MATTERS

February 21, 2017

Tim Arends

Executive Director

Traverse City Light & Power
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, Michigan 49686

Dear Mr. Arends:

On behalf of Franklin Energy, | would like to thank you for requesting that we present a direct proposal
to implement the Traverse City Light & Power Energy Smart Program for 2018-2022 and to continue to
improve the delivery of the Energy Smart Program.

We have greatly appreciated the support of the Traverse City Light & Power Board and staff over the
past six years. Together, we have successfully built a portfolio of energy savings programs that are
achieving their highest annual energy savings to date this year.

The TCL&P 2017 Business Program Savings goal is 2,614,499 kWh. Franklin Energy already has recruited
projects to be paid this year that total over 911,426 kWh and we are still receiving many applications
and calls for incentive projects to be completed in 2017.

Franklin Energy has established dynamic relationships with customers and contractors in the Traverse
City area. We at Franklin Energy look forward to continuing to deliver our efficiency program expertise
and innovation to the community of Traverse City over the next three years and beyond.

Sincerely,

& -

Eric Hatton
Regional Vice President

FranklinBD @franklinenergy.com | franklinenergy.com

102 N. Franklin Street, Port Washington, Wl 53074
t.262.284.3838 f. 262.284.4003 000




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

INTRODUCTION

Franklin Energy has valued our relationship with Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) through the
delivery of Energy Optimization programs over the past six years. During this time, Franklin Energy has
gained valuable insight to maximizing program participation for TCL&P’s business and residential
customers. Our goal during this period has been to successfully deliver high customer satisfaction, meet
energy savings goals, and bring innovative solutions to the programs. Franklin Energy’s current contract
to perform services for TCL&P is through the Michigan Public Power Association (MPPA).

TCL&P has requested that Franklin Energy present an individual proposal directly to TCL&P for
performing Energy Optimization services for three years with an option to extend annually for the
following two years. The purpose of this proposal is to request a direct services contract for the Energy
Smart Program for 2018-2022 and to continue to improve the delivery of the Energy Smart Program. We
will leverage our experience and existing relationships to continue delivering excellent service to
TCL&P's customers.

Over the past few months, Program Manager Kevin Salatrik and Program Outreach Lead Jennifer
Alvarado have met individually with TCL&P staff to review the Energy Smart Business and Residential
Program performance. These discussions were beneficial as a way for Franklin Energy to identify
adjustments to the Energy Smart Program for the upcoming years. One improvement we are proposing
is to lower the project incentive caps to ensure there are funds for more businesses to participate. We
describe this approach and others in the following document.

STAFFING: STABLE TEAM WITH MICHIGAN ROOTS

Franklin Energy offers TCL&P a differentiator in implementing your Energy Optimization programs
because we have local staff already based in Traverse City. Jacob Hardy, our local energy advisor,
responds to customer requests and continues to develop his local contractor relationship. He is
supported by our Energy Smart program team of Kevin Salatrik, Jennifer Alvarado, Energy Engineer Zack
Heideman, and Project Coordinator Dawn Berry. They are based in the Lansing area and bring in-depth
expertise to the TCL&P Energy Smart Business and Residential programs. Each member of our team is
passionate about energy efficiency and the Energy Smart program.

Additionally, Franklin Energy -- as a company -- is also dedicated to Michigan. Since January 2014,
Franklin Energy has been registered as a Michigan company under the name Franklin Energy of
Michigan, LLC. We currently have offices in Traverse City, Grand Rapids, East Lansing, Okemos (two), and
Detroit, where 180 employees provide energy efficiency services to Michigan’s residential and
commercial customers.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 2

32




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT

_CQMM_ERCIAL & I_N_DUSTRIAL_ & RES!DENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

Franklin Energy’s program team, shown in Figure 1, understands the importance of a positive experience
for each customer. We understand the customer’s perception is based on the sum of all interactions
with the Energy Smart team. That is why our program staff works especially hard to ensure each
interaction with a TCL&P customer is a positive experience. This is shown in such aspects as quick
turnaround time for incentive checks, full accessibility to customers, prompt return of emails and calls,
and thoroughly updating customers on their incentives.

s s e e e o e

EXECUTVE OVERSGHT
Erx
agsed Ve

REGIONAL DIRECTOR
Troy Simmon

Hum sources
Marketing Department
QAJQl

I
I
I
|
1
|

procramMancer [ |
Kevin S=fatrik

ENERGY ADVISOR OUTREACH LEAD PROJECT COORDINATOR
Zadk Heidemann Jennfer Alarado Dawn Berry

ENERGY ADVISOR
Jacob Hardy

ENERGY ADVISOR
Vanesa Delisle

Figure 1. Program Team. Franklin Energy’s program staff of professionals is based in Traverse City and the Lansing area.

Technology is another differentiator that sets Franklin Energy apart. Efficiency Manager, which is our
program management system built on the SalesForce.com CRM platform, is used to manage a wide
variety of energy efficiency programs across North America. Efficiency Manager integrates marketing
metrics and customer contact information with traditional energy efficiency program data management.
Our software provides complete transparency of program progress, allowing for close monitoring of the
activity pipeline to ensure appropriate steps are taken to achieve set goals on time and within budget
and to accurately forecast participation. Using Efficiency Manager, we can track many metrics and
generate reports on key indicators including participant data, budget spent and remaining funds, and
energy savings compared to targeted goals.

PROGRAM DESIGN: INNOVATIVE IDEAS FOR THE FUTURE

We feel it is important for our company to bring additional value to the TCL&P Energy Smart program
through innovation. Franklin Energy’s functional departments and product managers are continually
looking for opportunities to improve the transactions between the customers, trade allies, and the
implementation team.

Promoting the Traverse City Area Chamber Energy Efficiency Fund
Franklin Energy began promoting the Traverse City Area Chamber Energy Efficiency Fund this year to
business customers who may have been looking for additional financing for their efficiency projects. We
completed two audits at the Radio Center buildings and assisted in identifying opportunities for energy
savings projects.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 3

33




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM 7 February 21, 2017

Heading into 2017, Franklin Energy plans to add the financing program to all TCL&P Business Program
marketing materials and ensure that Jacob Hardy is leaving behind information on the program and
application process with contractors and customers. Franklin Energy plans to offer audit support to at
least five customers per year to assist with their application process in the loan program and to help
them identify projects.

New Construction

Over the past year, Franklin Energy has offered a standard way to include New Construction projects
into the Energy Smart Commercial and Industrial (C&I) Program. We analyze the proposed new
construction project measures against the current code, ASHRAE 90.1 2007, and offer incentives at the
custom rate of $0.08 kwWh. We will continue to offer this element of the custom program in the
upcoming years, based on the customer interest and successful implementation outcomes.

Expanding Portfolio of Programs Offered to TCL&P

After having conversations with TCL&P, Franklin Energy is proposing to continue new programs from
our portfolio. Figure 2 reviews all programs Franklin Energy proposes to offer in 2018-2022. The
proposed programs are the current 2017 program offerings.

(]
=
=
&
(]
=1

RESIDENTIAL
LOW-INCOME
SERVICES
HIGH EFFICIENCY
APPLIANCES
EFFICIENT HVAC
EQUIPMENT
APPLIANCE
RECYCLING
HOME ENERGY |
H20 KITS
MULTI-FAMILY
SERVICES
EDUCATIONAL
SERVICES
COMMERCIAL &
INDUSTRIAL
PRESCRIPTIVE
PROGRAM
CUSTOM
PROGRAM |
SMALL BUSINESS |
DIRECT INSTALL
EDUCATIONAL
SERVICES
PILOT/EMERGING|
TECHNOLOGY

R PILOT PROGRAMS

<

Traverse City

\/l/!/|f

Figure 2. Franklin Energy Offerings. This chart shows recommended programs from our current Program Portfolio.

C&I AND RESIDENTIAL EDUCATIONAL SERVICES

Franklin Energy will work with TCL&P to discuss the scope of the utility’s energy efficiency education
services. Together, we will determine the number of educational events and ability to print educational
materials based on budget and target goals. We will work with TCL&P to market the events at local
community locations, such as the library, community center, or other similar venues. These events will
be tailored to educate customers on ways to save energy, which may be outside of the Energy Smart
program, or how customers can better utilize the program to save energy. Examples of topics may
include: adjusting thermostats by season, checking air filters on furnaces, borrowing available kwh
meters from TCL&P for home monitoring, and others. Additional services, if budget allows, may include
seminars and webinars.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 4




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

PILOT PROGRAMS
Franklin Energy is proposing to work with TCL&P to investigate upcoming and leading technologies and
advanced concepts of saving energy for residential and commercial properties. We will work with
TCL&P to develop a written plan by the beginning of the 2018 program year to utilize budget and goals
to address these pilots. Examples of potential pilot efforts may include:

e New or emerging technologies (i.e. LEDs, trending thermostats, etc.)

¢ Adifferent delivery approach (i.e. audit program, behavioral program, etc.)

e Orademonstration project at a home or business within Traverse City.

RESIDENTIAL LOW-INCOME

Franklin Energy will continue to work with TCL&P to deliver the low-income energy efficiency program.
Items that may be included: LEDs, power strips, pipe insulation (electric heat only), thermostats (electric
heat only), new refrigerators, and other items.

PROGRAM DELIVERY: MOVING INTO THE 2018 PROGRAM YEAR

Franklin Energy’s six years of experience with TCL&P programs will support an expedient launch of the
new program year and eliminate any downtime and costs associated with program transition. Franklin
Energy has a clear understanding of the market from our past program delivery. We continually analyze
the programs’ market penetration and participation rates year after year to effectively design and
deliver the Business Program, New Construction Program, and the portfolio of residential programs. We
can review which segment of customers are participating and then target our launch strategies to
encourage lower-participating segments to hecome involved with the program.

We have established key relationships with stakeholders, such as membership in the Traverse City
Chamber of Commerce, and we know the history of program participants and customers who are
considering future projects. In addition, TCL&P customers and trade allies are comfortable with our
processes and appreciate the help we provide them in navigating the system to receive incentives for
their energy saving projects. Franklin Energy already has an infrastructure developed to maintain the
momentum of program delivery and support TCL&P’s requirements regarding reviewing and revising the
implementation plan as needed, reporting on program metrics and operational milestones, and
establishing performance metrics. Our approach to these requirements is outlined in the following
pages.

Implementation Plan Annual Review

Franklin Energy’s experience in energy efficiency programs across the U.S. and Canada has allowed our
company to develop best practices for strategies and tactics needed to deliver a successful energy
efficiency program. Franklin Energy’s implementation plan includes the implementation timeline, the
marketing plan, the outreach plan, the application and incentive process, and the evaluation process.
This plan is created with at least a 12-month outlook and is updated regularly through performance
monitoring and internal weekly meetings.

Our program managers assess risks, forecasts, team metrics, communication, and service-level
agreements.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE S

35




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

In the third quarter of each year, we begin to review the program and implementation plan documents
with TCL&P and ramp up to full speed by the heginning of the fourth quarter. This review includes but is
not limited to:

e Savings goals

e Budgets

¢ Measures offered — MEMD changes, market offerings, changes in cost oftechnology

o Application forms — ease of application/program participation, information availability,and
clarity

e New marketing plan for year to come

e  Existing marketing materials

e EM&V results, as they become available, and feedback from EM&V contractor

e Reporting needs

e Customer feedback

The quality of an energy efficiency program is ultimately a function of the program staff’s ahility to
deliver results on time and within budget, properly track customers, and achieve trade ally participation.
Creating the proper quality assurance processes upfront eliminates the potential for error and
ultimately ensures customer satisfaction. There are five main quality assurance and verification areas we
have identified as critical to the delivery of the TCL&P Energy Smart programs. These areas are:

1. Proactive Monitoring of Performance
2. Measurement Verification Process

3. Time Delivery of Services

4. Project and Data Quality

5. Customer Service.

The following outline provides a framework for the tasks and responsibilities of each area:

PROACTIVE MONITORING OF PERFORMANCE

Franklin Energy’s program team meets internally weekly to review TCL&P’s Energy Smart program
performance for kWh savings, incentives, marketing, and outreach. This allows Franklin Energy to be
proactive, foresee possible problems and to recommend solutions, exceptions, or program bonuses.
TCL&P will receive a performance report monthly to review its portfolio of program savings and
incentive hudgets. All marketing materials are sent out to clients ahead of time with requests for review
and approval. Franklin Energy strives to remain flexible with our program framework to meet the needs
of the TCL&P, their customers, and the contractors in the field.

MEASUREMENT VERIFICATION PROCESS

When a pre-approval application is received, the energy advisor compares the measures selected for
incentive on the application to the quote submitted for the project. Franklin Energy requires that the
contractors and distributors provide specification sheets with the application. The energy advisor
determines if the quote, the specification sheets, and the selected measures on the application
correlate, including the quantities on the estimate and the incentive amount on the application.

At this point, the energy advisor can choose to perform a pre-inspection to verify the measures will
indeed be new efficiency measures at the facility. While Franklin Energy internally has a standard of
conducting pre-inspections on at least 10 percent of the business projects, Franklin Energy has been
conducting inspections on at least 30 percent of the pre-approval applications received for the TCL&P
Energy Smart Program. Projects requesting a reservation of an incentive of $3,000 or higher will require

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 6

36




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

a peer review. As the incentive level increases, so does Franklin Energy’s technical review of the project,
including engineering reviews and technical manager reviews. The program manager also reviews every
pre-approval application before the reservation letter is sent to the customer for our program.

Franklin Energy also has a similar process for when payment request forms are turned in for the pre-
approved projects. When a payment request form is received, the energy advisor reviews the measures
on the invoice, the matching requested reservation of incentive amount, and the amount requested for
payment. The energy advisor determines if the invoice make and model number, the specification
sheets, and the selected measures on the payment request form correspond to one another, including
the quantities on the invoice and the incentive amount on the payment request form. Projects
requesting a payment of an incentive of $3,000 or higher will require a peer review. As the incentive
level payment increases, so does Franklin’s technical review of the project, including engineering
reviews and technical manager reviews.

If the project falls within the guidelines mentioned above, it will automatically receive a post-inspection
or the energy advisor can choose to perform a post-inspection to verify that the measures were indeed
installed at the facility. While Franklin Energy internally has a standard of conducting a post-inspection
on at least 10 percent of the business projects, Franklin Energy has been conducting inspections on at
least 30 percent of the applications received for payment for the TCL&P Energy Smart Program.

TIME DELIVERY OF SERVICES

Internal deadlines have been established to aid in managing the timeframe for the application process.
There is an initial review period of five business days with an allowance of 10 days if the application is
incomplete and missing the required documents. Within those10 days, we ensure the customer has
received, signed, and dated the reservation letter and returns it to our staff.

Customers have 90 days to complete their projects from the time they receive their reservation letter.
To ensure projects are moving along, 30, 60 and 80-day Efficiency Manager tasks are sent to the energy
advisors. When the energy advisors receive these tasks, they are responsible for following up with the
customer to see how the project is progressing. The initial 30-day task allows us to get an idea of when
the project will be completed. The 60-day task allows us to follow up to see if the project completion
time is still in place and to remind the customer they have 30 days to complete the project. The last
follow-up task of 80 days allows us to let the customer know they should be nearing completion of their
project and preparing their final paperwork. A record of the calls or e-mails are recorded in Efficiency
Manager to ensure accuracy of tracking the project completion.

PROJECT AND DATA QUALITY

Franklin Energy’s approach for ensuring project and data quality includes:

e For each project, a hard file is created along with a database account utilizing Efficiency
Manager for customer and project information recording.

e Each file contains a checklist for all components required in the file. (A sample of this checklist is
provided in the Appendix A — Project Compliance Checklist.)

e Clearly communicated approval procedures and sign-off responsibility for various sized projects
documented as a comprehensive approval process

e 10 percent minimum inspections of all projects and 100 percent of all custom projects greater
than $3,000 and 100 percent of all prescriptive projects greater than $7,500 in incentives, with
added inspections as deemed necessary (such as: de-lamping, air compressor audits, adding
VFD's to existing motors, and all custom applications)

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 7

37




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

e Periodic pre-inspections as appropriate to secure installation scheduling information and create
customer interaction and trade ally relationships

e Franklin Energy program manager’s inspection of jobs in the field and files to ensure quality

e Internal audit of processes and hard files (documented)

CUSTOMER SERVICE

We pride ourselves on meeting high customer service standards for TCL&P commercial customers. Our
program delivery processes, along with our experienced and knowledgeable staff, help to ensure a
positive interaction throughout a customer’s experience with the program. Despite our careful planning
and execution, our programs receive occasional complaints.

Our goals are to resolve issues promptly, minimize customer inconvenience, and ensure customer
satisfaction. For the TCL&P Energy Smart Program, we direct any complaints, disputes, and
disagreements directly to our energy advisors who have relationships with the customers and TCL&P
staff.

When a customer dispute arises, we address the issue immediately and resolve it as quickly as possible.
All customer complaints and issues receive a first response within 24 hours. The energy advisor reviews
all necessary background and consults the program application’s terms and conditions, the MEMD, and
program guidelines -- as needed -- to assess the situation. Disputes can vary from simple
misunderstandings, which are easily corrected through discussion, to more complex situations.
Depending on the urgency and severity of the situation, the energy advisor involves the program
manager in the resolution.

If a solution cannot be resolved to the customer’s satisfaction within 48 hours, the program manager
contacts the client to review the situation. Documentation is gathered as necessary, including written
emails, process support, and customer request for the solution sought. Franklin Energy strives to offer
the customer a satisfactory solution and resolve all complaints within five business days. Franklin Energy
understands the TCL&P has individual goals for customer satisfaction and participates in dispute
resolution as needed to uphold the principles of the TCL&P Energy Smart Business Program. Together,
Franklin Energy and the TCL&P will decide how to handle each situation to best ensure a good long-term
relationship with member utility customers.

Marketing and Outreach

For the TCL&P Energy Smart Programs, Franklin Energy’s approach will build on the successful processes
and plans we already have in place with Traverse City. Regional Marketing Manager Tina Saboury will
coordinate with program staff and TCL&P on updating the annual marketing plan. The TCL&P Energy
Smart program marketing will brand each marketing piece individually and coordinate efforts with
current TCL&P branding. This plan analyzes the current program status and energy-saving goals, defines
the marketing goals and objectives for the year, details planned strategies and tactics, and establishes
timelines for specific campaigns. During the year, we monitor program progress and adjust deployment
of the tactics and campaigns accordingly. The flexibility built into our annual marketing plan has allowed
us to quickly adapt to market changes and program results by ramping up or down our marketing
efforts. A proposed 2018 Marketing Plan is included in the Appendix B — Marketing Plan.

Our marketing goals include growing C&I customer participation, identifying more custom savings
opportunities in process equipment with past participants, pushing innovative tactics for residential
marketing, and continuing to strengthen our relationships with trade allies. Our overall approach

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 8

38




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM Fehruary 21, 2017

reaches out to customers who have been past participants and those who have opportunities for new or
larger participation in the program.

For customers with greater opportunity for savings, we direct our efforts toward making the program
offerings relevant to their business types. Franklin Energy’s experience with the program and
established relationships with customers helps us cultivate additional projects. Efforts to increase
energy efficiency are in alignment with continuous improvement efforts, financial performance, and
operational competitiveness. The following business segments are most important for meeting the
program goals and will be a focus when developing marketing pieces:

e Schools: This segment is made up of large buildings with opportunities for lighting and HVAC
upgrades. Schools have done a great deal of projects in the past and will continue to be an
important segment for the future.

e Local government: Since this segment has had little involvement in the program thus far, it
leaves a lot of opportunity for future projects.

e Non-profits: Focus on this segment provides non-profit organizations with opportunitiesto
lower energy bhills and save energy through honusincentives.

e Manufacturing/Industrial: These facilities provide opportunity for large complexcustom
projects, which significantly help to reach savings goals each year.

e Commercial properties: A priority will be given to educating the owners of property and parking
lots. This segment has a growing participation rate in the program and is a good candidate for
outreach and marketing.

e Grocery/Hospitality: There has been a high rate of participation from this segment in past years.
This provides an opportunity to dig deeper for projects that have not been completed and
market a specific measure.

e Healthcare: This segment includes a large range of facilities from hospitals to small doctors’
offices, providing opportunity for a range of energy efficiency projects.

A central part of the marketing effort for the commercial and industrial customers will continue to be
the stepped brochure. This brochure presents the TCL&P energy efficiency programs as a unified and
comprehensive package and sets the look and feel for all the other marketing materials. Last year,
Franklin Energy initiated efforts to cross-market TCL&P’s programs. This initiative resulted in the
creation of the short-form residential application and the development of the LED coupon, which are
included in the residential lighting kits and distributed by bill insert to the TCL&P customers. This year,
we updated the stepped brochure to include a new construction section.

OUTREACH PLAN

Franklin Energy will review our existing outreach plan with TCL&P in the third quarter of every year and
ensure it is updated prior to the start of the annual program. Through our outreach efforts, Franklin
Energy will strive to promote the local, community-driven aspect of the program and the TCL&P’s
reputation as a partner in energy efficiency for its commercial customers. By leveraging existing
association relationships and vendor networks, Franklin Energy will keep ahead of market changes that
might affect the program.

Engaging Trade Allies

We will continue to launch each program year in December of the prior year with an informational
contractor seminar to review upcoming program enhancements. In the first quarter of every program
year, Franklin Energy also will conduct one-on-one meetings with area distributors and contractors to

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 9

39



TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

inform them of product acceptance guidelines and the application process. Franklin Energy will keep
active trade allies informed on program progress and incentive status/budget availability.

For 2018-2022, our approach to engage and motivate trade allies will be built on our years of experience
in the market and our existing relationships, as well as best practices we have used in similar programs.
Franklin energy advisors have strong relationships with each of TCL&P’s largest customers and most of
the contractors that serve them. Most of the customers have already participated in the past, and we
continue to develop the necessary relationships to encourage continued participation.

Our staff began the year on pace to achieve 50 outreach visits. As the program continues to grow, staff
focus has changed from recruiting trade allies and generating participation to maintaining relationships
with trade allies and sustaining their interest in the program.

Looking ahead to the launch of the 2018 program year, our approach will shift to creating program
awareness within the trade ally community and renewing participation. We will educate distributors on
the product qualifications and incentives for the program to encourage sale of qualifying products to
trade allies. For trade allies familiar with the program, we will focus on refreshing their interest and
communicating any changes for 2018. We also will reach out to trade allies who are not participating in
the program to explain the program requirements, application process, and the benefit of energy
efficient measures. Successful tactics have included:

o Kick-off events and first quarter meetings to introduce new applications
e EXxpo visits

e Email blasts about bonus measures and deadlines

e Counter displays

e One-on-one meetings

e Program Marketing Materials

e Listings on website

PERFORMANCE METRICS

Our current performance metric for TCL&P programs is 90 percent fixed with a 10 percent holdback,
paid when we achieve the savings goal. Franklin Energy is always open to working with TCL&P to review
our performance against current metrics. In the event aspects of the program need to be enhanced,
Franklin Energy is ready to define and agree upon new performance metrics.

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Following in Figure 3 are value-added services Franklin Energy provides to TCL&P:

SERVICE PROVIDED 1
St EXPLANATION OF SERVICES

o Installation of data-logging equipment to assist customers with equipment
replacement decisions

e Technical information and studies for customers to be used in lighting designs to

ensure appropriate lighting levels based onfoot-candles

Equipment comparisons to aid in decision making

Tools and equipment,
data analysis

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 10

40




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT

COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM

SERVICE PROVIDED
TO TCL&P

Greenhouse gas
emissions/carbon
footprint

Special presentations
and education

Tariffs/rates, charges,
and exemptions

Additional funding and
grants available

Utility representation

Customer relations
support

Programmable T-stats

February 21, 2017

EXPLANATION OF SERVICES

o Direction in sustainability initiatives/strategic alliances

Education in and assistance with ISO standards and LEED certification; our staff
is well-versed on multiple certification requirements and often works with
customers who are interested or required to attain the certifications

Contact information, references, and efficiency information and calculations to
help the customer attain certifications of complete initiatives.

Energy Smart Presentations for residential customers and C&|customers
Webinars for trade allies

Energy Efficiency education for students

Community presentations at local fairs, trade shows, etc.

Explanation of different charges on utility bills during customer visits

Energy charges (on and off-peak), demand charges (customer and billed
demand), power factor, facilities charges, taxes and tax exemptions, etc.
education so customers understand how energy charges affect their operations
and how we calculate energy savings for recommended projects

Find and recommend grants, tax credits, and other programs that can be
beneficial for customers to participate in such as federal and state tax credits
Customers often express gratitude for having a utility representative show
concern for their business and offer assistance to help them be more successful;
TCL&P is able to improve public relations by having courteous and professional
representatives serving their customers through Franklin Energy

Community and face-to-face interaction with customers that do not otherwise
have much contact with the utility

Physically programming thermostats for customers : : ) .
Representation of TCL&P at Energy Efficiency and environmental sustainability
public and private events

Figure 3. Value-Added Services. Franklin Energy’s expertise strengthens TCL&P's impact across the industry and in the eyes of customers.

PRICING

Franklin Energy understands that current MPSC filing savings end in 2017. We will support TCL&P to
redefine future goals as needed. For illustration purposes, Franklin Energy has assumed 2017 goals for
2018 and 2019. Billing will occur monthly at 90 percent of the fixed cost with 10 percent being held back
until each business and residential program goal is reached. The remaining 10 percent of the fixed cost
category will be invoiced when 100 percent of the energy savings goals are fulfilled, the program is
within budget, and customer satisfaction measures are met. The performance cost is billed monthly
according to the percentage of kWh goal achieved for each program. Adjustments to percent of goal
billed are made for evaluation results.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS

PAGE 11

41




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT

COMMERC!AL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGBAM

~ February 21, 2017

_ FIXED PERFORMANCE " INCENTIVE |  TOTAL |  KWH

2018 $99,664
2019 ] $102,155
2020 | $104709
2021 | $107,327
' idzf Rk 1 $110,010

Figure 4. Business Program

| &
| 23
| s238
1 $2328
| $2328

Figure 5. Business Educational Services.

Figure 6. Business Pilot Services.

$42,713

|

| © $43,780
| 344,875
&

i
s

© $45,997

547,147 s

FIXED ERFORMANCE INCENTiVE

$-
$_

|

! :
o
| 3
S R T

2018 $3880 | | $9,663 $13,543
2019 \ $3880 | _s_ - | soee3 | $13543
2020 G 5. . waa | A
2020 | $3880 |  $- | $9,663 $ 13,543
22 | ssm0 | s- | s9ee 513543

$208,941 $351,318
| $2089481 | $3543876
"5_208521 | sssess |
$208,941 | $362,265
6208941 | $366,008

|  $5798 |  s8,1% |
| $s798 | 816 |
| $5798 | 48126 !
S EENE
| $5798 | $8,126 ;

_ PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE TOTAL

_ FIXED PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE

Figure 7. Residential Program.

— FIXED PERFORMANCE TOTAL

2018 1332
2009 - $1,332
2020 T
2021 $1,332
2022 $1,332

Figure 8. Residential Low Income.

2018 $28,620 $2,967 $ 59,674 $91,261 |
2019 $29336 | $3041 $59,674 $92,051 |
20200 | $30089 | $3117 $50674 |  $92,860 |
2021 $30,820 |  $3,195 $ 59,674 $93,689 |
2022 $31,591 43975  $59,674 - soa540 |

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS

$3,316 54,648
83316 | sa6as
. $3316 | Sace8 |

$3316 | %4648 ] :

§3316 sa648 |

2,614,499
2,614,499

2,614,499

2,614,499
2,614,499

KWH
415,135
415,135
415,135
415,135
415,135

PAGE 12

42




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT

COMMERC!AESE[NFLQS}-&A’L& RESlDENTlALPROGRAM - 7 Februaryzl, 2017 -
T 7 e S |

2018 | $2,328 5  $5,798 88126 | 49,768

2019 | - $2,328 0 $- $5,798 © $8126 | 49,768

2000 Pt e S s $5,798 $8,126 49,768

071 B gl & . | %5708 8126 | 49,768

202 | $2328 | $- | 5798 | 8126 | 49,768

Figure g. Residential Education Services.

7 e e e IR
2018 $3,880 $9,663 $13543 | 82,947
2019 | $3,3880 5‘,, | s9663 |  s13543 | 82047
2020 | $38%0 | 5 $9663 | $13543 | 82,947
200 | $3880 e %0663 gissas | Broar
2022 | s3s80 |  s- | s9e63 | s13543 | 82,947

Figure 10. Residential Pilot.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 13

43




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

Invoicing Methodology
For 2018-2022, Franklin Energy is proposing the following invoicing methodology:

The fixed cost category will be invoiced monthly at the beginning of each month. The fixed cost figure in
the tables above - for each program - would be divided evenly across all 12 months for each year with 10
percent being held back based on reaching the overall Residential and Business goal for TCL&P.

The total fixed budgets for each program in the Business and the Residential programs would be
summed together and not individually billed. The remaining 10 percent of the fixed cost category would
be invoiced when 100 percent of the energy savings goals are fulfilled, the program is within budget,
and customer satisfaction measures are met.

The performance cost category would be invoiced up to 90 percent on a pro-rated basis against
percentage to goal and would be based on the total performance for Business and Residential. Each
program that makes up Business and Residential would not be billed individually. To calculate the
performance payment rate ($/kWh), the performance cost total by program would be divided by the
program energy savings goals to provide a cost per kWh rate. The remaining 10 percent of the
performance cost category would be invoiced when 100 percent of the energy savings goals are fulfilled,
program is within budget, and customer satisfaction measures are met.

Franklin Energy will be billing according to products installed, purchased, and recycled for the following
programs implemented by Franklin Energy:

e Residential Lighting
¢ LowIncome
e Appliance Recycling

To provide the most flexible offering, Franklin Energy will work with TCL&P to determine the best
measure mix for each category to provide the highest level of savings balanced with the most current
technology based on budgets within each category. The customer incentive price for each service is
outlined in the following table:

INCENTIVE ITEMIZED BILLING KWH $/KWH

Residential Lighting Kit (CFL Only 2-9W, 2-13W, 2-23W) | $17.00 | 1838 | $0.09
Residential Lighting Kit (4-13W CFL, 2 11-W LED, 1 LED NL) | $4200|  356.80 | $0.12
Residential Lighting Kit (LED 4-6W 2-9.5W, LED NL) | $75.00 | 412.00 | $0.18

Figure 11. Incentive ltemized Billing.

Contract Amendment

The program year will begin December 1% of every year and will run through November 30" of the following
year. In the event that either party would want to add or remove services that are agreed upon in the
contract, they must provide documentation no later than 120 days before the beginning of the next program

year. Both parties must agree upon the requested change to contract terms in writing in order to proceed with the

implementation of the program in the following year.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS PAGE 14

44




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

APPENDIX A — PROJECT COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST

To ensure project and data quality, Franklin Energy’s approach includes creating a hard file along with a
database account for recording of customer and project information. Each file contains a Project
Compliance Checklist as shown here.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS

APPENDICES - PAGE 1

45




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM

February 21, 2017

BElectric Prescriptive Coversheet

Program/Ukility Name:
LI

Teoreal

UOJJRULIO JU] JaLUOISND

Propel Nurrker

brita Appleatiey Boposid
Amerl Commlzart Amaot

Fralfpgesian
Azout

Find fypiemd
A=cart

Account Name:

Firal
ret enkrred

Firal Wy

Sa Afdess

Cappedd
Int erfve]

Frescrpsvel
Ekchic
It enfii g

Account Number - Elet:

PrascripSred
HNT

Customer Emal Addrass

MY Savings,

Payment Cordact

SN

Proecd Type:

Trade Aty Harre:

TA cortat infr

Custom Projct
humier

Adstons Progct
rurrbers

Pre-Approva
Proect Cost

Find Project Cost

ujupy

Irdtais

D3k Coordinaer Reded

Comments

lAppic stion Recerved

Hame of EAEE providng Tech Review

Arcephince Letter Sent

MBASY e |uYdaL

Comments

Zppitaton Compiate

Expedad project compreton date deermined

|1nfufmabm Needad Leler SentContact Mada

Bilng Staemeant Re cetved (All programss but LBWL)

Quate, Spec Shests Recetved

Trade Alty Irfoamation is coflected and entered In Bensh

Pre-Approval Apoication scanned & attached in Bersight

Submited to Technic al Manager (f appicable)

PRE A PPROY,

ACCE e Letier-7 day fofow-up if sigred ketter not recelved
TECHNICAL CHECHLIST

Date

Dae

Commants

Incentive worksheat completed for all measures

Requested amount makthes measues ndicaed
[Specs provided and compete

Jtemized quote provided and complete

Iitemizej insoke provided and compete
[Peer Review C el

|it 2pproved and amount 10% +- dfferent than Incentive

ICg@s o supplementd documertation hthe fie

50% Project cap & Progrem cap appied

[verfy Addtional projects fr caps

P ayment spproval applcation scanned & stisched in Bensifit

Date INSFECTIOH CHECKLIST

Commans

Prednspecbon Conplete - Yes No

Postinspection Complel - ves o

inspecton Resuts Recorded & in he Fie-Yes / No

REWEWY CHECK LIST

iids

Commanls

Ulikty Incentive Cap Appoed

30 Day n Progress-Folow-up wih Customer

50 Day n Progress-Folgw-up with Customer

30 Day In Progress-Folow-up wih Customer

|2ctual Proiect Completon Date Provid ed

SAIRASUNPY

Date MANHAGELENT APPROVALS

Dae

Technical Manager Sign-af

Program Manager Signoff

Regiona Manager Sign-off

Heaoquaters Revew Sgnaf

Regional Vice Presidant Review San- off

PAYME HT CHECHLIST

_Coamas

[Batch Number

Payment Release Authorization (Optonad)

Payment date

Cheik number

Fle Complete Appicabon scanned and atached N Bensight

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS

APPENDICES - PAGE 2

46




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

APPENDIX B — MARKETING PLAN

TCL&P Energy Smart®

2017 Tactical Marketing Plan

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS

APPENDICES - PAGE 3

47




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

Executive Summary

The 2017 marketing plan for the Traverse City Light and Power (TCL&P) Energy Smart® program
is based on maximizing program efficiency and effectiveness through the measurement of ROI
and the application of integrated campaigns to most effectively and economically achieve
program goals. Key focus points for 2017 are segmentation, seasonality and technology shifts.
This plan utilizes tactics proven to drive program savings (targeted direct mail, website support,
email blasts, newspaper, and online campaigns). These tactics will be constantly monitored and
restructured when needed in order to meet program goals.

Tactical Marketing Plan: TCL&P Energy Smart

PROGRAM OVERVIEW

Campalgn Name: TCL&P Energy Smart’

Program Manager: Kevin Salatrik

Marketing Contacts: Tina Saboury

For the Period of: January 2017 - December 2017

The Traverse City Light & Power Energy Smart® Program is a suite of energy efficiency programs
designed to assist the residential, commercial and industrial customers of Traverse City Light & Power in
increasing their energy efficiency. In partnership with the Michigan Public Power Agency (TCL&P), the
Energy Smart programs provide technical assistance, assessment services, rebates, and financial
incentives designed to encourage the implementation of energy efficient projects and the adoption of
efficient behaviors, Those programs can include: Residential Lighting, Residential Appliance Turn-In,
Residential HVAC, Residential Efficient Appliance, Business Incentives, New Construction

MARKET SITUATION

The passage of Public Act 295 in October 2008, mandated that all rate-regulated utilities file energy
optimization [efficiency) programs with the Michigan Public Service Commission (MPSC).

The act stipulates that utilities dedicate a graduated percentage of gross revenue to the programs. The
percentages are outlined below:

2009 0.30%
2010 0.50%
2011 0.75%
2012-2017 | 1.00%

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS APPENDICES - PAGE 4

48




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM

February 21, 2017

PROGRAM OBIJECTIVES
Program Type 2017 kWh Goals
Residential Program Services 415,135
Residential Low-Income 22,827
Residential Educational Services 49,768
Residential Pilot 82,947
Subtotal Residential 570,677
Business Program 2,614,499
Business Educational Services 49,768
Business Pilot 82,947
Subtotal C&I 2,747,214
Total kWh Goal for All Programs 3,317,891

COMMUNICATIONS OBJECTIVE

Similar to years past, the communications objective in 2017 is multi-faceted, comprised of C&Ias well as

residential outreach. The portfolio objective is to raise awareness of program availability and

participation requirements to the trade allies, closely followed by promotional and awareness efforts in

the business and consumer markets.

For both C&land residential an additional communications objective is to increase awareness of the
program in low-participating utilities, while also continuing to target past program participants by

educating them about new measures and incentives available in the 2017 program year.

TARGET MARKET

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS

BUSINESS CUSTOMERS

Traverse City 8,267

4,573

Note: Residential customer data is based on 2010 actual utility dato. Business customer data s based on 2010 Census data,

RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS

The TCL&P Energy Smart program serves approximately 8,267 residential customers. However, this
market can be hard to reach due to the seasonal nature of residents In some of the residents, Many

residential homeowners utilize their homes for rental or vacation purposes and are not reachable at all
times of the year. Communication will be tailored to reach the most customers for TCL&P. For seasonal
residents, marketing campaigns will run in-season (June through August}. Also taken into consideration
will be lower-income or rental heavily areas, where communication will focus on affordable changes to

save energy.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC « WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS

APPENDICES - PAGE 5

49




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT
COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM February 21, 2017

BUSINESS CUSTOMERS

The Business Customers served by TCL&P are successfully rebounding from the impact of a challenged
economy. Michigan has recently made positive strides with business tax cuts and simplification, efforts
to increase energy efficiency are directly impacted by other business improvement efforts, improved
financial performance, and operational competitiveness.

Overall, communications need to emphasize the financial benefits of efficient behaviors (potential
energy savings, receipt of valuable measures), as well as focus on the low-maintenance and high
durability qualities of energy-efficient products. Emphasis on walk throughs by the Energy Advisor, Jacob
Hardy, will help customers successfully engage in energy savings measures. The Energy Efficiency Loan
Fund will also be promoted and included in all business focused marketing materials.

TRADE ALLIES

Product distribution networks and local Trade Allies of the TCL&P EnergySmart program are key to the
success of reaching high volumes of the TCL&P business customers. Jacob Hardy will continue to target
them through new program year kick-off activities, one-on-one meetings and networking through the
chamber and other business activities.

MESSAGING

RESIDENTIAL
The TCL&P EnergySmart residential program makes it easy for you to save energy, lower your energy
costs, and earn valuable cash incentives.,

COMMERCIAL
The Energy Smart Commercial & Industrial programs make it easy for you to save energy, lower your
energy costs, and earn valuable cash incentives.

TRADE ALLIES
Educating your customers and encouraging your customers to participate in the Energy Smart program
Is a great way to grow your business and retain loyal customers.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS APPENDICES - PAGE 6

50




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT

COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM

February 21, 2017

2017 STRATEGY & TACTICS

Application Development & Revisions

Applications are an integral part of any energy efficiency program. Making sure they are completely
accurate, easy-to-navigate, consistent, and easy-to-access is imperative. Program applications will be
revised from previous versions to enhance usability and to match brand standards. This will be
continued to be used in 2017 and will be placed at the point of sale with prepaid envelopes to simplify
the process of applying for rebates.

Est. Est. Timing
(Manth Description
[Program/Applications _ ‘
Business Application 100 January 2017 Update
Residential Application NA January QOnline Only
Residential POS Slim Jim 1000 January Point of Sale App.

Program Overview Materials
Due to its extensive and wide-spanning nature of use, the Business Overview Sell Sheet and Business
Stepped Brochure will be updated and continued to be used in 2017,

Est, Est. Timing
Tactic : Quantlty

- Description
[ErGgran Materials

Business Stepped Brachure B 100 | January 2017 dte
Business Overview Sell Sheet 100 January 2017 Update
Case Studies 100 June | Based on performance

NEW: Program Participation Materials

A program participation plaque can be given to customers who complete (or have completed) large-
scale projects resulting in more than 1,000,000 kWh of savings. In 2017 the participation window clings
will also continue to be used. These tactics will help raise awareness about the program and the
potential for savings through high visibility, which can further drive participation from other customers.

Est. Est. Timing
Tactic Quanti

Description

[Participation Materialsy ‘ _ | R NCTN PR SR |
Window Cling 100 March Reprint
kWh Plaques 5 November 2017 Update

Community Events

Having a presence at community events will allow program staff to promote the program and build
awareness of available measures and incentives. Significant lead time is required to register and gather
the necessary materials.

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC ¢ WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS

APPENDICES - PAGE 7

51




TRAVERSE CITY POWER & LIGHT

_ COMMERCIAL & INDUSTRIAL & RESIDENTIAL PROGRAM - February 21, 2017
Est. Est. Timing
Description

Tactic | Quantity (Month)
[EvERtMAatarials | I

Events 5 78D Residential Qutreach
Giveaway Items 400 February Bags

Website Maintenance & Refresh

The goal this program year is to use the website as a selling toal (through launching various URL
redirects to be used with tactics and campaigns throughout the year) and to further engage customers
once on the website (through fillable PDF C&1 applications, a Trade Ally Directory, and more useful page

copy). Program marketing will analyze website reporting on a routine basis to gain insight into usage and
make website adjustments based on knowledge gained.

Est. Est. Timing
Tactlc Quanti {Month
[mienergysmartican | |

Description

Domain Renewal NA January
Trade Ally Directory Page NA Morch Trade Ally Listing
URL redirects NA January
Updates NA April 2017 Updates

FRANKLIN ENERGY SERVICES, LLC » WHEN EXPERIENCE MATTERS APPENDICES - PAGE 8




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

"31. 19]2

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

p— ——  — -
100 YEARS)

To: Light & Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: March 8, 2017

Subject: Electric Fund Budget

Enclosed for your review is the proposed 2017-18 Electric Fund budget with a supplemental
payroll spreadsheet and six year forecasted cash flow that will be discussed at the Regular
Meeting scheduled for March 14, 2017.

ELECTRIC FUND BUDGET
Overall the fund remained relatively status quo with a few exceptions described below.

REVENUES

Utility Sales

Currently, there is no proposed base rate increase in revenues for the upcoming budget year;
however, in May staff will bring before the board a cost of service increase/decrease based on
the different rate class for the purpose of eliminating subsidizations between them along with a
proposal to simplify the rate structure.

The amount of kWh’s used for projected 2016-17 retail sales were calculated by taking actual
sales through January 31, 2017 and averaging past years billing consumption from February 1
through June 30 and increasing it by one percent (based on historical trends). The retail sales for
the 2017-18 fiscal year was forecasted at one percent over projected sales to account for annual
load growth while taking into consideration energy savings gained through the utility’s energy
efficiency program over the 2016-17 and prior fiscal years. In the current year, there were no
separate additions for significant load to the system.

The retail sales kWh consumption was then compared to the modeling performed by Michigan
Public Power Agency (“MPPA”) which takes into consideration weather patterns (heating and
cooling days), economy, population characteristics, and past history consumption. Staff
analyzed the retail sales kWh consumption to MPPA’s forecasted wholesale purchases; it
provided a 2.5% line loss for projected and 5.4% for budget, both within electric utility industry
standards.

53




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

Utility sales increased primarily from projected to budget because of load increase and the power
service cost recovery in the budget year increased approximately $.00362 per kWh due to higher
per kWh power costs through conservative estimates.

EXPENSES

Generation Expense

Generation expense on a per kWh increased approximately $.00176 per kWh or $600,000
primarily because of a higher load purchase resulting in more energy being purchased off the
market at an expected higher rate than the current year. The load increase attributes to $900,000
increase from projected to budget.

The new Wolverine Plant located in Gaylord has not yet affected the overall run times for the
Kalkaska Combustion Turbine since MISO seems to be running it because of reliability
purposes. However staff, continually monitors this as it could significantly increase generation
costs because of loss generation revenue in recovering fixed costs and increases to the per kwh
rate because of less kWh’s to spread over fixed costs.

Additionally staff is reclassifying all sales to the Purchased Power account instead of the
individual projects account where it was possible to provide a more clearly transparent picture of
how much the actual generation costs for each generator. Net amounts will be available but no
longer presented.

Payroll

Staff continues to provide transparent information on salaries and wages/fringe benefits by
providing a supplemental sheet showing the actual salaries and wages/fringe benefits by
department and the reclassifications that are made in/out of that department along with the full
time equivalents (FTE). The amount of salaries and wages/fringe benefits shown on the budget
statements is the net amount reflected in the payroll supplemental sheet as Net Wages/Fringe
Benefits Reported. There are many reclassifications that occur during the year that include
salaries and wages/fringe benefits being transferred to the Kalkaska Combustion Turbine, Energy
Optimization, employees working for other departments or work orders that are capital in nature,
and GASB 68 and GASB 75 adjustments (new OPEB standard).

Staff is continuing with the Board direction on the 9 year amortization (was 10 year last year)
schedule to increase our funding percentage towards the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. Staff
cannot provide the impact this has had on our actuarial value as the last actuarial report was as of
December 31, 2015 not encompassing any of the accelerated payments while adopting new
assumptions and incurring an investment loss for the year. As of that report the utility was 57%
funded. Going forward the 9-year amortization will be an additional $1.2M in cash outlay
beyond the normal contribution requirement. In May/June 2017 the new December 31, 2016
actuarial report will be published including the six months of accelerated payments.

54




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

The pension expense calculation has driven the cost of fringe benefits. In 2015-16, 2016-17
projected and 2017-18 pension expense calculated in accordance with GASB 68, which
coincidently matched the 10 year amortization funding schedule, resulted in approximately
$2,000,000 while normal contributions pre GASB 68 would range from $900,000 to $1,000,000.
This expense will eventually decrease as the investment portion of assets held in trust increase
through higher contributions and the fall off in 3 to 4 years of amortization expense relating to
the assumption changes and investment loss that occurred in the 2015 year.

On the payroll statement there are several deviations from current year budget to current year
projection to 2017-18 recommended budget, which mostly consist of changes and timing related
to retirements, terminations of employment causing vacancies along with the corresponding
benefits attributed based on a percentage of payroll. Additionally, the change in actuarial
contributions and electing the 10 year amortization funding schedule as the GASB 68 pension
expense is classified under reclassifications.

Operating Income

The utility’s target operating income should cover the depreciation expense and the inflationary
cost to replace those assets often referred to as the rate of return on investment. This calculation
is taking the net book value times the calculated rate of return and should be approximately
$3,000,000. Currently the operating income is below the target operating income. This provides
information that the utility will need to do a rate increase in the future when the cash balances
decrease as presented in the cash flow.

CASH FLOW
Overall cash flow shows the utility being in compliance with the utility’s cash reserve policy.




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER DEPARTMENT
2017-18 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses Summary

FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 16/17 FY 17/18
Actual Actual Budget Projected Recommended
Operating Income: $ 37,143,589 $ 35,530,044 $ 37,091,900 $ 34,536,200 $ 36,065,200
Operating Expenses:
Generation Expenses:
Capacity $ 12,000 $ 465,421 $ 745,000 $ 733,000 $ 810,000
Purchased Power - MISO (358,421) 3,766,366 1,401,000 740,000 2,640,000
Purchased Power - Lansing BWL 5,675,258 2,898,085 - - -
Stoney Corners - Wind Energy 2,819,687 2,940,041 3,170,000 3,025,000 3,170,000
Combustion Turhine Power Cost 3,364,832 3,338,292 4,272,000 4,375,000 4,500,000
Camphbell #3 Power Cost 4,850,934 3,793,717 4,412,000 4,075,000 4,522,500
Belle River #1 Power Gost 5,349,402 3,749,902 4,187,000 4,050,000 3,800,000
Landfill Gas - Granger Project 494,766 567,834 1,118,000 900,000 980,000
M-72 Wind Turbine 8,890 35,056 37,000 47,500 48,000
Bilateral Contracts 292,322 1,100,866 4,286,000 4,350,000 3,300,000
Other Generation Expenses 345,503 414,424 449,650 491,250 329,050
Total Generation Expenses 22,855,173 23,070,004 24,077,650 22,786,750 24,099,550
Distribution Expenses:
Operations & Maintenance 3,530,929 4,424,951 3,886,250 3,821,100 4,261,500
Transmission Expenses:
Operations & Maintenance 406,584 421,135 437,000 504,900 525,100
Other Operating Expenses:
Metering & Customer Accounting 568,692 577,278 559,350 562,000 561,550
Conservation & Public Services 513,302 671,545 486,000 564,500 593,000
Administrative & General 834,938 986,037 1,187,800 1,295,300 1,276,100
Insurance 57,875 62,001 65,500 68,000 70,720
Depreciation Expense 2,157,940 2,254,188 2,625,000 2,625,000 2,605,000
City Fee 1,863,259 1,784,900 1,870,000 1,739,000 1,820,000
Total Other Operating Expenses 5,996,006 6,335,949 6,693,650 6,753,800 6,926,370
Total Operating Expenses 32,788,692 34,252,039 35,094,550 33,866,550 35,812,520
Operating Income $ 4,354,897 $ 1,278,005 $ 1,997,350 $ 669,650 $ 252,680
Non Operating Revenues/(Expenses):
Non Operating Revenues 544,543 737,684 369,200 613,000 555,800
Non Operating Expenses (428,620) (355,965) - - -
Total Non Operating Revenue 115,923 381,719 ° 369,200 613,000 555,800
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in - 175,000 175,000 125,000 125,000
Change in Net Position $ 4,470,820 $ 1,834,724 § 2,541,550 $ 1,407,650 | $ 933,480

56




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
2017-18 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 14/15 FY 15116 FY 16117 FY 16/17 FY 17/18
Actual Actual Budget Projected Recommended
OPERATING REVENUES:
Residential Sales $ 6,612,011 $ 6,090,231 $ 6,375,000 $ 6,130,000 $ 6,400,000
Commercial Sales 16,392,293 15,348,675 16,150,000 14,900,000 15,560,000
Industrial Sales 10,788,926 9,615,567 10,770,000 9,500,000 10,050,000
Public Authority Sales 317,521 309,162 315,000 300,000 300,000
Street Lighting Sales 199,517 203,949 195,000 200,000 225,000
Yard Light Sales 86,531 98,529 82,000 115,000 155,000
Forfeited Discounts 73,522 60,777 70,000 60,000 60,000
Merchandise and Jobbhing 115,918 231,826 64,200 81,000 70,000
Recovery of Bad Debts 30 26 200 200 200
Sale of Scrap 30,804 41,792 35,000 40,000 35,000
Miscellaneous Income 42,535 41,663 33,000 39,500 39,500
Refunds and Rebates 2,481 4,795 2,500 500 500
MISO Revenue 2,481,500 3,483,052 3,000,000 3,170,000 3,170,000
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $ 37,143,589 $ 35,530,044 $ 37,091,900 $ 34,536,200 $ 36,065,200
OPERATING EXPENSES:
GENERATION-OPERATING & MAINTENANCE:
Salaries and Wages $ 104,905 $ 123,124 $ 152,100 $ 136,300 $ 62,000
Fringe Benefits 96,876 192,648 148,800 239,200 142,700
Wind Generation - Traverse 60 - - - -
Trap and Transfer 95 - 250 250 250
Union Street Fish Ladder - - 250 250 250
Kalkaska Combustion Turhine - - - - -
Operation Supplies 470 - 1,000 - 1,000
Capacity Purchases 12,000 465,421 745,000 733,000 810,000
Purchased Power - MISO (358,421) 3,766,366 1,401,000 740,000 2,640,000
Purchased Power - LBWL 5,675,258 2,898,085 - - -
Stoney Corners - Wind Energy 2,819,687 2,940,041 3,170,000 3,025,000 3,170,000
Combustion Turbine Power Cost 3,364,832 3,338,292 4,272,000 4,375,000 4,500,000
Campbell #3 Power Cost 4,850,934 3,793,717 4,412,000 4,075,000 4,522,500
Belle River #1 Power Cost 5,349,402 3,749,902 | 4,187,000 4,050,000 3,800,000
Landfill Gas - NANR & Granger Project 494,766 567,834 1,118,000 900,000 980,000
M72 Wind Turbine 8,890 35,056 37,000 47,500 48,000
Bilateral Contracts 292,322 1,100,866 4,286,000 4,350,000 3,300,000
Tolal Purchased Power 22,509,670 22,655,580 23,628,000 22,295,500 23,770,600
Puchased Power Cost as % of Sales 65.44% 71.55% 69.73% 71.69% 72.71%
Coal Dock 9,367 2,842 - - -
Communications 1,084 170 250 250 250
Meal Payments 80 - 200 - 200
Safety 2,201 2,994 3,500 3,500 3,500
Tools - - 500 500 500
Professional and Contractual 113,124 85,029 110,000 86,200 96,000
Transportation 9,618 6,316 9,800 7,000 7,000
Professional Development - - 2,000 500 500
Uniforms 2,156 3,456 3,500 4,500 3,500
Vehicle Rentals 8,243 (3,308) 17,500 12,800 11,400
Miscellaneous (2,776) 1,153 - - -
Total Generation O & M 22,855,173 23,070,004 24,077,650 22,786,750 24,099,550
DISTRIBUTION OPERATION & MAINTENANCE:
Salaries and Wages 1,223,372 1,226,717 1,247,000 1,044,000 1,213,000
Fringe Benefits 1,077,958 1,611,956 1,200,650 1,560,600 1,616,000
Office Supplies 2,176 3,160 4,000 5,000 4,000
Operation Supplies 38,101 51,121 40,000 40,000 40,000

57




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
2017-18 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 16/17 FY 17/18

Actual Actual Budget Projected Recommended
Utilities 54,372 44,244 63,000 50,400 51,000
Meals and Payments 3,609 3,231 6,000 3,500 5,000
Communications 27,217 33,987 64,000 22,200 61,500
Software and Hardware 66,827 74,618 158,000 146,500 191,400
Substation 219,685 70,618 119,900 72,300 120,000
Overhead Lines 160,495 170,363 181,000 202,000 205,000
Load and Dispatching - 25,000 30,600 31,500 31,500
Storm Damage Contingency - 448,383 100,000 - 50,000
Underground Lines 33,619 97,922 40,000 30,000 30,000
Electric Meters 7,509 2,624 8,000 4,000 6,000
Street Lighting 250,383 217,587 204,000 210,000 230,000
Traffic Signal Oper. & Maint. 4120 1,767 10,000 5,000 5,000
Radio Equipment 10,390 3,244 5,000 5,000 5,000
Plant & Structures 68,965 94,302 96,700 81,000 82,000
Safety 34,205 27,538 38,000 38,000 38,000
Tools 13,599 14,969 20,000 16,000 31,000
Uniforms 18,318 22,218 23,000 25,000 25,000
Professional and Contractual 122,274 139,050 93,500 90,000 94,000
Rent Expense 1,688 1,757 2,000 2,000 2,000
Professional Development 35,788 28,861 60,000 52,000 65,000
Printing and Publishing 2,601 4,110 3,500 4,000 4,000
Transportation 29,496 23,796 29,000 25,000 28,000
Vehicle Rentals 11,036 (23,539) 28,900 4,600 16,600
Miscellaneous 539 1,673 500 1,500 1,500
Inventory Adjustments 12,687 3,674 10,000 50,000 10,000
Total Distribution O & M 3,530,929 4,424,951 3,886,250 3,821,100 4,261,500

TRANSMISSION OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE:
Salaries and Wages 287,792 232,813 279,000 287,000 294,100
Fringe Benefits 952 409 4,000 3,500 3,500
Substation 13,725 14,496 16,000 47,500 50,000
Overhead Lines 10,364 76,667 21,000 23,000 23,000
Load and Dispatching - - - 13,500 13,500
MISO Transmission 24,481 32,494 36,000 35,000 36,000
Tools - - 3,000 1,000 9,000
Professional and Contractual - - 15,000 15,000 15,000
Vehicle Rentals - 223 1,000 3,000 3,000
Miscellaneous-MPPA Transmission Project 69,270 64,133 62,000 76,400 | 78,000
Total Transmission O & M 406,584 421,135 437,000 504,900 525,100
METERING & CUSTOMER ACCOUNTING: i

Salaries and Wages 279,959 273,710 268,200 274,200 ° 263,700
Fringe Benefits 162,424 190,106 134,700 169,450 164,600
Office Supplies 2,110 3,610 4,150 4,200 4,200
Communications 173 110 400 250 250
Hardware/Software - 22 - 500 8,000
Meal Payments 20 - 200 200 200
Safety 2,979 4,990 3,500 3,500 3,500
Uniforms 1,638 1,826 3,000 3,000 3,000
Professional and Contractual 17,764 23,893 14,000 12,000 13,000
Postage 27,799 28,185 33,000 30,000 33,000
Uncollectable Accounts 37,912 1,739 38,000 10,000 10,000
Collection Costs 2,595 4118 | 6,000 5,000 5,000
Data Processing 16,509 20,197 25,000 25,000 25,000
Transportation 3,055 2,344 8,500 4,500 4,500
Professional Development 320 1,124 2,500 3,500 5,000

Printing and Publishing 482 684 4,000 3,500 4,000




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
2017-18 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 16/17 FY 17/18
Actual Actual Budget Projected Recommended
Vehicle Rentals 11,455 19,666 12,600 12,600 14,000
Miscellaneous 1,498 954 1,600 600 600
Total Customer Accounting 568,692 577,278 559,350 562,000 561,550
CONSERVATION & PUBLIC SERVICES:
Salaries and Wages 39,575 22,481 15,100 13,300 13,300
Fringe Benefits 28,427 34,637 11,100 9,700 9,700
Professional and Contractual 25,000 4,011 6,500 22,000 1,500
Contract Labor - Energy Optimization (65,443) 30,948 - - -
Public Service & Communications 12,439 32,653 30,800 21,000 22,000
Community Services 1,866 32,240 34,000 33,000 35,000
Professional Development 102 - 3,000 - -
Printing and Publishing 892 - - - -
Vehicle Rentals 7,419 3,943 5,000 6,500 6,500
PA295 Energy Optimization Compliance 463,025 510,632 380,500 459,000 505,000
Total Conservation & Public Services 513,302 671,545 486,000 564,500 593,000
ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL:
Salaries and Wages 362,235 386,497 521,000 500,300 515,700
Fringe Benefits 195,384 322,167 361,300 513,800 474,100
Office Supplies 5,207 5,973 5,200 6,000 6,000
Communications 5,030 3,909 3,500 4,400 4,400
Software and Hardware 16,350 18,579 22,500 12,200 15,000
Fees and Per Diem 57,668 67,613 66,300 68,000 70,000
Board Related Expenses 3,308 3,872 15,000 15,000 15,000
Professional & Contractual 101,647 82,759 83,300 77,100 67,400
Legal Services 49,631 57,950 63,200 58,000 65,000
Employee Appreciation 11,813 7,073 9,000 7,000 7,000
City Fee 1,863,259 1,784,900 1,870,000 1,739,000 1,820,000
Transportation 1,267 619 1,500 1,500 1,500
Professional Development 21,303 15,985 25,000 22,000 25,000
Printing & Publishing 3,436 4,682 6,000 5,000 5,000
Insurance and Bonds 57,875 62,001 65,500 68,000 70,720
Miscellaneous 659 8,359 5,000 5,000 5,000
Depreciation Expense 2,167,940 2,264,188 2,525,000 2,525,000 2,605,000
Total Administrative and General 4,914,012 5,087,126 5,648,300 5,627,300 5,771,820
Total Operating Expenses 32,788,692 34,252,039 35,094,550 33,866,550 35,812,520
Operating Income $ 4,354,807 $ 1,278,006 | $§ 1,997,350 $ 669,650 $ 252,680
NON OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES):
Rents and Royalties $ 49,046 $ 44,387 | $ 40,700 $ 40,000 $ 46,500
Pole Rentals 42,180 48,860 36,500 68,000 . 68,000
Reimhursements 143,048 296,244 72,000 147,000 91,300
Interest & Dividend Earnings 310,269 348,193 . 170,000 350,000 350,000
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets (428,620) (355,965) 50,000 8,000 -
Total Non Operating Revenue/{Expenses) 115,923 381,719 369,200 613,000 555,800

Change in Net Position before Transfers $ 4,470,820 $ 1,659,724 $ 2,366,550 $ 1,282,650 $ 808,480




City of Traverse City, Michigan
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER
2017-18 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 16/17 FY 17/18
Actual Actual Budget Projected Recommended
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Operating Transfers In - 175,000 175,000 125,000 125,000
Change in Net Position $ 4470820 $ 1,834724 $ 25416550 $ 1,407,650 @ $ 933,480

60




Cash Flow Forecast - Market Value of Assets - 9 vear n MER! 5% rate increase 19 & 2020-21 & 2022-23
e e Actual == F Estimate _Estimate Estimate |  Estimate |  Estimate 3
e Fiscal Year: 2015/16 2017/18 - 2018/19 ' 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Receipts
Charges for Services 31,666,113 31,145,000 32,690,000 34,161,050 34,844,271 36,412,263 37,140,508 38,811,831
Other Operating Revenues 3,863,931 3,391,200 3,375,200 3,442,704 3,511,558 3,581,789 3,653,425 3,726,494
Non Operating Revenues 630,842 613,000 555,800 566,916 578,254 589,819 601,616 613,648
Transfers in 175,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Total Receipts 36,335,886 35,274,200 36,746,000 38,295,670 39,034,083 40,683,872 41,495,549 43,251,973
Payments
Generation Expense 23,069,158 22,786,750 24,099,550 24,581,541 25,073,172 25,574,635 26,086,128 26,607,851
Distribution Expense 4,387,363 3,821,100 4,261,500 4,346,730 4,433,665 4,522,338 4,612,785 4,705,040
Transmission Expense 451,739 504,900 525,100 535,602 546,314 557,240 568,385 579,753
Metering & Customer Accounting 560,770 562,000 561,550 472,781 482,237 491,881 501,719 511,753
Conservation & Public Service 671,545 564,500 593,000 604,860 616,957 629,296 641,882 654,720
Administrative & General 985,174 1,295,300 1,276,100 1,301,622 1,327,654 1,354,208 1,381,292 1,408,918
Insurance 62,001 68,000 70,720 72,134 73,577 75,049 76,550 78,081
City Fee 1,784,900 1,739,000 1,820,000 1,856,400 1,893,528 1,931,399 1,970,027 2,009,427
GASB 68 Adjustment (1,096,888) (181,426) 161,522 164,752 168,047 171,408 174,837 178,333
Capital Investments 8,407,374 5,695,500 5,776,591 5,640,591 5,766,591 6,221,591 5,193,591 4,811,591
Total Payments 39,283,136 36,855,624 39,145,633 39,577,014 40,381,742 41,529,045 41,207,194 41,545,466
Cashflow Surplus/Deficit (-) (2,947,250) (1,581,424) (2,399,633) (1,281,344) (1,347,659) (845,173) 288,355 1,706,506
Opening Cash & Investments Balance 22,318,405 19,371,155 17,789,731 15,390,098 14,108,754 12,761,095 11,915,922 12,204,276
Closing Cash & Investments Balance 19,371,155 17,789,731 15,390,098 14,108,754 12,761,095 11,915,922 12,204,276 13,910,783
Reserved Cash & Investment Balance 9,350,000 9,405,000 9,700,000 9,800,000 9,900,000 10,000,000 10,400,000 10,550,000
Unreserved & Undesginated Cash & Investment 10,021,155 8,384,731 5,690,098 4,308,754 2,861,095 1,915,922 1,804,276 3,360,783




00°009°L6Z 007009062 ST 01282 +0°928°€9¢ 6L EVL 88T
STYe 9912 s ST ST'¥Z
€Y' TI06TI8C TT VL6 TS T 0L ESO'EvP'T Z0°0v8°£L08'C ST'0EETOET

(50°2TZ'90€'T)

(00°Z95'896)

(€Z'€TS'0ET'T)

(56'008662)

(z9'889£18)

81'8TZ'SZTY TZ'9ES'0TIS'E £6'99S°ELS‘E £6°0V9°LOT'E LLBTO'GIT'E
S¥'£T6'99T'2 9T'S6E'8E8‘T £6'606'ZT9'T 08'TrZ'Z8I‘T 90'9EY'SYIT
€0'T0E'856'T SO'TYTTLO'T 00°£S9'096'T LT'66E'STET TL'Z85'0L6T
00°E 00°E 00°E 00°E 00's
8 £85V0T ET69EVLE 68°62°T0E €6'TLLSTE 8P I8LTOT
(SE'TTE BTY) (ev'Z6T't02) (0Z'96£66T) (£T'6TSLYT) (9€'99%'16T)
6166879 95195848 60'9¥Z'10S OT'T6Z'E9Y v8 LY E6E
0526V L¥E 9£'9t1'90€ 68°0£8°82¢ 29°99/'TLT 6T L6L°6ET
69°90%'94T 0Z'ST¥'zLT 0Z'SIY'ZLT Y ¥ZS' 16T SS°0SY'EST
198png paivalosd | 198png [en3oy [en1oy
8T0Z LT0Z 9102 STOZ

SUOIIBIILISSE[2Y
juawnedaq uoissiwsues )

5,314 4101
pauoday sujauag asuliifses8e 19N

SUOIEDIISSE|DDY

|e303gns

s1jouag a3uliy

sademn

juawyuedaq uonnquisia

$31d 4100
payoday sjyauag 28ul/seden 1eN

suoljedlisse|oay

|1B3ogqns
s}jauag a8uL4
sagem

1uswpedag uonrel2udn

LT0T Y21eNl
193yspeaids jejuawa|ddng jjoiAed
1amod pue ySi7 Ay asianea]

62



- - - 0S'0 00'T
00"000'€Z 00°000°€2 v8'L60°92 66'8TT LS €8'T00°89
00°000°€2 00°000°€T ¥8°260°9T 7T°878'9 (BEVEL'TT)

. ? - §8'0£2°0S TZ'9EL6L
= - " 89'THT'ST L8 LE0'ST
= - . LT'6TT'SE $E869%S
06'C 00'€ 00°€ 00°€ 00
002 00'2 0sZ 0sC 0s'C
8E'8LE LTV TO'89T st TT9EE'S6¢E St'9T8'Eor 8T TBETHY

(£T'T89°9T) TEESET (z0's8£'LS) YT ESY TR (0Z'S6SET)
SS'6S0'vbY 69°7I8'0OvY ET'TIT'ESY TZ'E8E'TeY 8v'LL6'SSY
89'9€t'9LT €0'rrS 29T L8168 VST 6L78STVET 9£'SYE'GYT
18779192 99'0LT'8LT 97'£TT'36T P YTI'88T TL'TE9'90E

193png paafold _ 323png 1enay 1en1dY
8T0Z £10Z 9T0Z ST0Z

$,314 4101
pauoday siyauag aduldfsasem 19N

SUOI3BDI4ISSR|ITY

|e101qns
sujauag a8und

sagem

2210436 1| gnd fuoneziwndQ Adiaug

s3.14 A&a |eao)
$,314 4101
peuoday sujauag a8ull{fsedem JoN

SUOI1BD1}ISSR|I3Y
|exoagns

sjjausg asull4
sadem

juawpedaq Sunalan /a21AI3S J9WOISN)

LTOT Y2IEN
199yspeaids [eluawajddns [joJAed
Jamod pue S A3 asaanea]

63



OT'T 0T'T 0T'T 0T'0 01’0
68°025°SLT PO EIYTLT LOTLOOPT TO'ET6°6L YL TEEYS
(e67€0g’s) LOVEST (#E°6€9'T) IT E¥8'E9 9Z'STL'EL
Z8'vZ8'081 LS'6L8'69T TV OTL LYT 06'690°9T 81°9090T
00°0TZ'66 0€'€£8'88 T 70,99 62°T90°S T5'LL8T
7871918 £LT°900°T8 £7°900'T8 T9'800'TT 96'87L°8
06'Ss 06'S 06'S 00'¥ 00t
LL°S95°L86 S9'SZETTOT 99°8T9'T88 £LT'1%99'80L T6°8T9'LSS
(zt'££0°95) (0£°9ST'T) (ZL°STH'8) £LS°006°62T €9'TL6TE
6T £09'€H0T SETYTIOT 8EPE0068 0£°E9L'8LS 8T'L¥9°SZS
L8'6LE'SEY 79218y ' 92T'69¢€ S9'99Z'Z6T 95°95/'8ST
TEETT'BYS €T'95E0ES ¥6'L06°02S S0°L6V98E 7L°068'99¢€
193png paialoid _ 123png |en3dy |enoy
8102 £T0Z 9102 STOZ

53144101
paiioday sjyauag aduli4/sadem 19N

SUOIEDIISSE|IRY

|eloiqns
s)jauag adulg
sasem

pung Jaqtd

5,314 4101
pauoday siyauag 28uLiy/soSem 19N

suolledlyISse 29y

|eloaqns

s)youag a3uLd

sademn

sjuswpedsq uoleSILIWPY

LTOZ YoIen
193yspeaads jeyuawajddns [joiAed
lamod pue Y317 A asianea )

64



‘sasodund 8unaspng Joj sjunowe Suipunod Jo asnedaq JUBWIILR1S 198pNng 3yl 03 Ajoexa aa.43e Jou AW siunowy :ON

ST'6E 99°9¢ SL6E STLE SLLE

06°2 00°€ 00°€ 00°€E 00°€E

SZ'9€ 99°gg SL'9€ ST'PE SL'VE

ETSTYLIY9 8E'VLTTTIL'S 6'8L9°595°S EL'6TY'8E9'Y 90"PETVBSY

00°0 (00°0) 00'0 00°0 {o0°0)

GE'69L'8Y6 00°00T'6%8 00°509°808 69'vSL'TZ8 76°'T85°28L

00°00t'v2 60°0S6'6 ZEBIT'ES o' TZT'6T +¥8'T0E'9S

£ST8L'6ST (se9zt'18T) 0L vL6°ES (90°82T'960°T) (00°0s£'€8¢)

00°000'0S€ 00°0088LT 0S'9vL'ELT £6'079'96T ZT'0TS'V8T
128png paisaloid _ 193png [en1dY |eny

8I0Z £T0Z 9T0¢ ST0Z

s, ald|eloL
5,314 AyD jejoL
5,314 48101 [Ej0L

syyouag adungfsasem |erol

|e3oL

sadem Jo uoinjezijende)

uoneziwido Agiau3

G 9SV9 ® 89 9SVD

aulgny uolsnquio) eysexey
1SU0I3RILISSE[IaY

LTOZ Yya1ein

19ayspeauds |ejuswa|ddng jjoiAed

Jamod pue 3317 A3 asianel ]

65



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER
To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director
Date: February 21, 2017

Subject: Presentation of the Fiber Fund 2017-18 Budget

Enclosed is the Fiber Fund and related cash flow for the fiscal year end June 30, 2018.

BUDGET
This year the budget is relatively status quo to the last year’s presented budget with a few
exceptions noted below.

Fringe benefits increased related to pension expense being underestimated in the prior year
budget. It was caused by the not incorporating the impact of the assumption changes (interest
rate, mortality, and amortization policy) and the effect of the investment loss for the 2015
calendar year.

Professional services decreased relating to the Fiber to the Premise Feasibility Study being
completed in the current fiscal year.

Repairs and maintenance and Reimbursements accounts increased relating to a fiber
relocation costs being incurred and reimbursed by the property owner.

The Transfer out decreased related to maintaining adequate cash flow in the fund while
continuing with the repayment to the Electric Fund for the initial investment of the Fiber Fund.

This budget does not reflect any activity relating to the Fiber to the Premise Project. If the Board
decides to move forward after the presentation of the feasibility study and board discussion, all
of the initial activity (construction phase) would be reflected in the balance sheet primarily
through bonds payable, cash and fixed assets.

CASH FLOW

The projected six year cash flow represents inflationary increases in fiber revenue and related
expenses, except for one time expenses such as the professional services related to the fiber
business plan and one time fiber relocations costs and corresponding reimbursement.
Additionally, staff has continued to include planned repayments to the Electric Fund for the
initial investments into the Fiber Fund.

66




Traverse City Light & Power
Fiber Opties Fund

2017-18 Budgeted Revenues and Expenses

FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 16/17 FY 17/18
Actual Actual Budgeted Projected Recommended

Operating revenues:
Charges for services S 255,752 § 278,376 $ 326,316 $ 279,000 $ 319,000
Other - 129 - - -
Total Operating Revenues 255,752 278,505 326,316 279,000 319,000
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 49,165 44,601 72,072 78,500 81,500
Fringe benefits 35,167 35,081 57,632 91,660 99,210
Office & operation supplies 331 1,829 1,000 1,500 1,000
WIFI operations and maintenance 23,225 28,678 32,000 32,000 29,800
Hardware and software - - 4,000 5,400 5,400
Professional services - 1,727 54,200 24,500 -
Legal services - 2,475 2,700 2,000 1,500
City fee 12,788 13,932 16,400 13,975 15,975
Professional development - - 2,500 - 2,500
Insurance 1,161 - 1,400 1,000 1,000
Repair and maintenance - 11,171 5,000 9,000 20,000
Vehicle rental 12,461 8,974 13,000 13,000 13,000
Miscellaneous - - - -
Depreciation expense 116,606 143,383 145,000 145,000 145,000
Total operating expenses 250,904 291,851 406,904 417,535 415,885
Operating income (loss) 4,848 (13,346) (80,588) (138,535) (96,885)
Non-operating revenues:
Reimbursements 296,122 54,127 38,400 42,400 53,400
Interest revenue 4 125 500 500 500
Total non operating revenues 296,126 54,252 38,900 42,900 53,900
Other financing transfers:
Transfer out - (175,000) (175,000) (125,000) (125,000)
Change in net position 3 300,974 § (134,094) § (216,688) § (220,635) $ (167,985)




980°111 $ SISI01 $ 8806 $ SSL88 $ SLFOII $ €opesl $ 86060 $ 2dUE[Eg SIUIWISIAU] P YSED SUISO[D)
H _ _ | _ | |
8IS 101 $ 8806 $ S5.°88 $ SLFOIL S <€9p'EeT $ 86060 § - $ ddUE[RY SHULWISIAU] P Yse) sutuad
W | |
| | | | | |
8956 0SHL £ec's (€7L°12) (586C2) (S€9°5L) 860°60Z (=) 3dyaq/sniding moyyse)
* _ “ H ﬂ _
8L6'9LE L¥SILE €27°99€ | £00°98€ | s88°S6€ SES‘L6E | ¥91°T8¢ sjuawAed [e10L
000001 000001 000°001 | 000°SZ1 000°ST1 000°SZ1 000'SLI pung 9L093[g 0} J3ysul],
- - - = - = 980°ST sjuawisaau] jende)
95TTE ¥Z9°1E ¥00°1€ 96£°0€ 008°6Z 000°Z€ 00S°€€ asuadxq [JIM
TTLYYT €T6'6£C 61T°SET L09°0€T $80°1¥T SES'OVT 8LSSPI asuadxg Joqig
SJUIWIAEJ
| 9%5°98¢ LLG'SLE 9SS 1LE 08Z'9¢ 006°TLE 00612 T9T°16S 53d1229 [B)0 L
- - - - - - (1v+'61) UBO[ JIOSP YSBD pungIau]
= - - - 5 & 000°S.LT (10al01d TAIM VAQ) SI[qeAI0al JO Surwy |,
00S 00 00S 005 00S 005 00S Y0 - senuaAY Supressd uoN
0SL°0F 156°6E 891°6€ 00t°8€ 00%°€S 00%°TH LTIPS SHUSUWISINQUILDY - SINUSASY SulteIsdQ UoN
| 96T°SvE  $ | STS'SEE  $ | 888°1€E  $ | 08€czE S [000%61E  $|0006LT S| 9L0°18T  $ 13q1J - S3OIAISS 10} SO5IRYD
_ sidraoay
TT0Z0T | 1T/0Z0Z | 0Z/610T 61/8102 SI/L10T | LI/910T 91/SI0T | :dBdX [easig

[
JewInsy Jewysy | ewnsy [en)oY _

Aewnsy Aewnsy | Aewnsy

- puny Joqij - 19

68




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

st 197o

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board

From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: February 21, 2017

Subject: Rate Comparison

A strategic plan goal under Customer Satisfaction is to maintain customer rates lower than other utilities
in the area. As a part of measuring whether the utility is successful, staff completes a rate survey every
two years of the utilities throughout the state.

Included with this memo you will find the rate survey of Residential Rate with consumption levels at
500 kWh and 1000 kWh, Small Commercial Rate with consumption level at 1,200 kWh and Large
Commercial Rate with demand level at 30 kW and consumption level 11,000 kWh. The consumption
amounts for the Small and Large Commercial Rates were obtained by averaging TCL&P’s actual billing
data from the past fiscal year.

The data for this rate survey was obtained from utility websites, telephone calls/emails to respective
entities and is for the time period for rates effective as of December 2016.

Compared to the last rate survey completed in December 2014 residential is ranked 4™ up from 7™ and
11™, respectively, for the 500 kWh and 1000 kWh consumption level. Small commercial is at the top of
the mid-range with being ranked at 14" up from 23rd, less expensive than Consumers Energy, but more
expensive than Cherryland Electric Cooperative. Large commercial is better than small commercial
ranked at 3rd up from 11", less expensive than both Consumers Energy and Cherryland Electric
Cooperative.

The movement upward in each rate comparison is primarily caused from the change in the utility’s

power service cost recovery rate. In December 2014 this rate was $.00860 and it has decreased to
$(.00144) in the current rate survey.

69




]

Cooperatives

Municipals

Traverse City Light & Power |
Michigan Electric Rate Survey - December 2016 bk o T :_| I -
| |
: | PA 295 PA 295 :
RESIDENTIAL Energy PA 295 | PSCR Availability Tax Total Rank | Energy Rate Per kWh Rate Monthly Rate PSCR Rate Availability
) | 1 | -
m |Zeeland BPW s 34.05 | § 1.00 [ § 3.00 | $ 6.50 | § 178 | $ 46.33 1 113 0.06810 | $ - 1005 0.005997 | § 6.50
m |Harbor Springs $ 37.10 | § 0623 650 | $ 4.00 | $ 193] |8 50.15 2 | |s 0.07420 | § 0.001240 - s 00133 4,00
m |Chelsea Light & Power $ 38.10 | § 1.00 | $ 3.00 | $ T 6708 195 |8 50.75 3 e 0.07620 | $ i 100 | § 0.00600 | § 6.70
m Traverse City Light & Power $ 47.00 $ s (072) $ 6.00 $ 200 % 54,37 4 1 3 0.09400 $ - Sy {0.00144) $ 6.00
m |Charlevoix $ 40858 089 |3 10.70 | § 5.25 | § 231 [$ 50.99 5 | |8 0.08170 | $ 0.001780 - |8 0.0213¢ | § 5.25
i |American Electric Power/Indiana Michigan s 44.11 | § 3.70 | $ 4458 7.25 | § 238 [ 61.87 6 | | |s 0.08821 | § 0.001330 3.00 |3 0.00889 | $ 7.25
m |Holland Board of Public Works $ 49.85 | § 387 | $ - s 738|% 244 |8 63.42 7 B 0.09570 [$  0.001745 3.00 | $ - |s 7.26
m |Bay City Electric L&P s 5090 [ § 041 |% (1.62)] § 1175 |8 246 | $ 6391 | 8 HE 0.10180 | $ 0.000825 = (0.00323)| $ 11.75
m | Coldwater Board of Public Utilities $ 49.75 | § 1.26 | $ C387]8 7503 250 [$ 64.88 9 HE 009950 [$§  0.002520 - |5 00077486 | 3 7.50
i |Wisconsin Public Service (Menominee) $ 51.06 | § 110 |3 (0.95)] $ 12.00 | § 233 |3 65.73 10 | |3 0.10211 | $ 0.002200 - |8 000190)| $  12.00
i |Northern States Power Company / Xcel $ 5650 5% 110 | § (2.19)| S 8.75 | $ 2.57 $ 66.73 11 | |§ 0.11300 | $ 0.002200 - $ (0.00438)| S 8.75
m |St Louis $ 57.13 | § 1133 - |8 6.70 | $ 260 |8 67.55 12 [ 0.11426 | 3 0,002250 - s - s 6.70
m |Niles Utilities Department s 47.00 | § - s 3.35 | $ 15.00 | § 261 |8  67.96 13 | s 0.09400 | $ - - |3 0.0066937 | $ 15.00
i |Alpena Power Company | $  ss11$ 1.35 | $ - [$ 5.00 | $ 262 |8 68.07 14 e 011821 | $ 0.002630 - [s ERE 5.00
m |Lowell Light & Power $ 39.30 | $ 3818 1195 | § 10.80 | § 263 | $ 68.50 15 BB 0.07860 | $ 0.001627 | 3.00 | $ 0.02390 | $ 10.80
m [Marshall 3 57.05 | & - s 245 % 7.25 |8 267 |8 ev42| | 18 | |8 0.11410 | § - - |3 0.00490 | $ 7.25
m |Hillsdale Board of Public Works $ 57.62 | § 1158 - s 8.16 |3 268 |8 69.60 17 HE 0.11523 | $ 0.002300 | - 8 - ls 816
m |Gladstone s 60.05 | 080§ (1.80)] $ 8005 268 |% 69.73 18 | |§ 012010 |$  0.001600 - S {0.00360)| § 8.00
m |Sturgis S 50,59 | § 096 | $ 1.90 | $ 15.00 | § 274 | | % 71.18 19 | |8 0.10118 | § 0.001910 - s 0.00380 | § 15.00
c [Thumb Electic ) 60.68 | $ 1088  (5.08)[% 1200 % 275] [$ 71.47 20 HE 0.12136 | 3 0.002160 - |3 (0.01008)| $ 12.00
m |L'Anse $ 60.55 | § 130 | $ {2.75)] $ 10.00 | § 276 |$ 7186 | | 21 | | 0.12110 | $ 0.002600 - 1§ {0.00550)| $ 10.00
m |Dowagiac ] s 52.30 | § 110 |8 348 12.37 | § 277 |8 72.01 n | 1$ 0.10459 | $ 0.00220 - s 0.00696 | $ 12.37
m |Lansing Board of Water & Light $ 59.85 | § 1.68 |3 0.94 | $ 10.00 | ¢ 290 | $ 75.36 23 HE 011970 [§  0.001853 0.75 | § 0.001873 [ § 10.00
i |Consumers Energy $ 68.10 | & 1.44 | $ (3.44)| $ 7.00 | § 292 |8 76.03 24 B 0.13620 | $ 0.002889 R {0.00688)| $ 7.00
m |Grand Haven Board of Light & Power [ § 60.95 | $ - |3 260 | $ 1000 | $ 204 |8 76.49 25 HE 0.12190 | $ - - |8 0.00520 | $ 10.00
¢ |Cloverland Electric Coopertive s 59.43 | § 093 [ % 414 | % 2008 294 [$ 7650 26 | | |$ 011886 |5  0.001870 - s 000828 | 9.0
¢ |Cherryland Electric Cooperative $ 54.90 | $ 0723 4.00 | § 15.00 | § 298| | $ 77.60 27 | |3 0.10980 | $ 0.001430 - s 0.00800 | $ 15.00
i |Detrait Edison Company s 6777 | § 1.20 | $ (0.10)] $ 6.00 | § 299 |$ 77.86 28 HE 0.13554 | $ -] 1203 (0.00020)| $ 6.00
c |Presque Isle Electric & Gas $ 56.87 | $ 115 | $ [0.66)| $ 18.00 |5 301 |3 78.37 29 | |$ 0.11373 | § 0,002280 - |8 (0.00131)] § 18,00
m |Wyandotte S 69.88 | § 230|% - S 5.50 | § 311 $ 80.79 30 [ 0.13975 | $ 0.001968 132 | § - $ 5.50
m |Crystal Falls s 6450 S 1.35 | $ K 12.73 | 3 314 | [§ 8172 31 HE 0.12900 | $ 0.002700 - |5 - s 127
¢ | Midwest Energy Cooperative $ 57.20 | $ 099 | $ 270§ 1800 % 316 | | $ 82.05 E7 [BE 0.114408 | $ 0.001980 - s 0.00540 | § 18.00
i |Wisconsin Electric (Western U.P.) ~ |$ 68868 292 [ § (2.08) § 9.47 | § 317 | |$ 82.37 33 R 0.13771 | § 0.003470 118 |8 (0.00408)| $ 9.47
¢ |Homewarks Tri-County Electric S 61.40 | $ 087 |5 201|S 17.50 | & 3.27 $ 85.04 34 | |'S 0.12280 | $ 0.001730 - $ 0.00401 | § 17.50
m |Marquette Light & Power s 67.50 | § 089 | $ (0.83) $ 1650 [§ 336 | |8 8142 | 35 IRE 0.13500 | $ 0.001771 - | (0.00185)| $ 16.50
¢ |Great Lakes Energy S 4320 | $ 099 | § 8.25 | $ 32.21 | $ 3.39 $ 88.04 36 [ 0.08640 | $ 0.001980 - 5 0.01650 | 32.21
m |Norway - 13 65455 124 | $ 500 5 1300 $ 339 ] [$ 8808 | | 37 | | [$ 013090 |$  0.002480 - ¢ 0.01000 | 3 13.00
m [Negauree $ 69.60 | § 150 |3 250 % 14408 35 |§ 9152 38 | s 0.13920 | § 0.003000 - s 0.005C0 | § 14.40
c |Alger Delta Electric $ 7450 | § 131§ R 25.00 | § 403 | |8 104.84 39 HE 014900 | $§  0.002620 - |3 BE 25.00
i |Upper Peninsula Power (Central U.P.) $ 104.64 | $ 240 3 U | s 1500 | $ 4.88 $ 12692 | 40 | 1% 020927 | § 0,004800 - S - s 15.00
¢ |Ontonagon County REA S 93.50 | $ 138 | § 8.25 | S 20.00 | $ 4,93 s 128.05 | s E 0.18700 | $ 0.002750 - s 0.01650 | § 20.00
T i
I | | - B —

Note; Prepared by TCL&P for internal use only. Rate information obtained from utility websites and telephone calls/e-mail's to respective billing departments. Some rate information

may contain estimates and judgment was used for selection of the best rate to be used in comparison. Based on winter/fall of 2016 billing information. Analysis does not include fow

income surcharge because of it being a pass through to the State of Michigan.

Investor Owned

70




Traverse City Light & Power |
Michigan Electric Rate Survey - December 2016 g |
|
PA 295 PA 295
RESIDENTIAL Energy PA 295 PSCR Availability Tax Total Rank | | Energy Rate Per kWh Rate Monthly Rate PSCR Rate Availability
= = — — i = l =
m |Zeeland BPW - ) 5 68.10 | $ 100 |$ 6.00 | & 650 | % 3.26 | |$ 84.86 | 1 | |$ 0.06810 | $ - 100 | % 0.005997 | $ 6.50
m |Chelsea Light & Power § 78205 1.00 (3 6.00 % 6.70 [ $ 360 | $ 93.50 | 2 | |$ 0.07620 | $ - _ 100 | $ 0.00600 | $ 6.70
m |Harbor Springs 3 7420 | $ 124 % 13.00 | § 4003 370 | % 96.14 3 | |8 0.07420 | $ 0.001240 - |8 0.013 | $ 4.00
m Traverse City Light & Power $ 94.00 $ Sl (1.44) $ 600 § 394  § 102.50 4 s 0.09400 3 - Sl (0.00144) $ 6.00
1 |American Electric Power/Indiana Michigan $ 88.21 | $ 439 | % 889 | % 725§ 435 | § 113.09 | 5 | 1|5 0.08821 | $ 0.001380 3.00 | $ 0.00889 | $ 7.25
m |Charlevoix 5 870§ 178 |$ 2139 |5 525 | $ 440 | |$ 114.52 | 6 | | |$ 0.08170 | $ oooi7e0 | - |% 0.02139 | $ 5.25
m |Bay City Electric L&P - B $ 101.80 | 083 |5 (3.23)| $ 11.75 | § 4.45 $ 115.59 | | 7 N 0.10180 | 0.000825 - 5 (0.00323)|§ 11.75
m |Holland Board of Public Works 5 99.70 | $ 475 (% -~ |$ 7.26 | $ 447 |$ 116.17 8 | 1§ 0.09870 | $ 0.001745 3.00| % - |3 7.26
i |Wisconsin Public Service {Menominee) S 102,11 | § 220 | (L90)| § 12.00 § 4.58 $ 118.99 ] | |S 0.10211 | 3 0.002200 - s (0.00190)| § 12.00
m |Niles Utilities Department 5 94.00 | $ - |3 6.69 | $ 15.00 | § 463 | | § 120.32 w ] |s 0.09400 | $ - - |$ 0.0066937 | $ 15.00
m |Coldwater Board of Public Utilities $ 99508 252 (% 775 % 7.50 | $ 269 | |8 1219 1 s 0.09950 | 3 0.002520 - 1§ 00077486 % 7.50
m |Lowell Light & Power - 5 78.60 | § 463 | 5 2390 |$ 10.80 | § 4.72 S 122.64 12 (R 0.07860 | $ 0.001627 3.00 | § 0.02390 | § 10.80
i |Northern States Power Company / Xcel S 113.00 | S 2320 |5 (4.38)| § 8.75 | § 478 | |$ 12435 13 e $ 011300 | $ 0.002200 - |8 (0.00438)| $ 8.75
m |Sturgls s 101188 191 |$ 380 |$ 1500 |§ 488 | | $ 126.77 14 s 0.10118 | $ 0.001910 - |3 0.00380 | $ 15.00
m |St Louis s 114.26 | 5 225 | % - s 6.70 | § 4.93 S 128.14 15 | |$ 011426 | % 0.002250 - § - S 6.70
¢ |Thumb Electric $ 121.36 | § 216 | % (1008)|$ 1200 % 502 | 130.46 16 kS 0.12136 | $ 0.002160 | - 1S (0.01008)| $ 12.00
m |Hillsdale Board of Public Works & 115.23 | § 230 |$ - |5 8.16 | § 5.03 $ 130.72 17 (N 0.11523 | § 0.002300 - s - s 8.16
i |Alpena Power Company $ 11821 | § 269 | $ - s 5.00 |3 s04] |$ 130.94 18 | s 0.11821 | 0.002690 | - s - s 5.00
m |Gladstone 5 120.10 | $ 1.60 | (3.60)| $ 800 |5 504 |8 131.14 19 | |3 0.12010 | $ 0.001600 | - |5 {0.00360)| $ 2.00
m |Dowagiac - $ 10459 | § 220 |3 696 | 5 1237 | § 504 | [§ 131.16 20 | [s 0.10459 | § 0.00220 - |3 000696 | § 12.37
m |Marshall ) $ 114.10 | $ - |3 490 [ § 7.25 | § 505 | [ 3 131.30 21 1|5 0.11410 | $ - - [ 0.00490 | $ 7.25
m L'Anse B 121.10 | § 260 [$ (550} $ 1000 |5 513 | |8 133.33 22 E 0.12110 | $ 0.002600 - s (0.00550)| 3 10.00
¢ |Presque Isle Electric & Gas S 11373 | § 229 |8 (131)[$ 18.00 | § 5.31 5 138.02 23 | |$ 0.11373 | § 000220 - % (0.00131) $ 18.00
m |Lansing Board of Water & Light s 119.70 | § 260 | $ 1878 10.00 | 5 537| [$ 13954 24 HE 0.11970 | § 0.001853 | 0.75 | $ 0.001873 | $ 10.00
¢ |Cherryland Electric Cooperative $ 109803 143 | $ 8005 15.00 | $ 537| | $ 139.60 25 HE 0.10980 | § 0.001430 - % 0.00800 | 3 15.00
c |Great Lzkes Energy $ 86403 198 | $ 16.50 | $ 3221 $ 548 |8 14257 | | 26 | [s 0.08640 | $ 0.001980 - |3 0.01650 | $ 3221
m |Grand Haven Board of Light & Power s 121.80 | = S 520 |5 1000 |s 5.48 s 142.58 27 | |8 0.12190 | § - - S 0.00520 | $ 10.00
¢ |Cloverland Electric Caopertive $ 11886 % 197 | $ 82 |% 9.00 | $ 552 | |8 143.63 28 | |15 0.11886 | $ 0.001970 - s 0.00828 | § ) 9,00
i_|Consumers Energy - $ 13620 S 289 [ § (6.88) $ 7.00 | $ 557[ [$ 144.78 29 | s 0.13620 | § 0.002889 - s (0.00688) | $ 7.00
¢ |Midwest Energy Cooperative 5 11441 | § 198 % 540 |5 1800 |5 5.59 s 145.38 30 I 0.114408 | § 0,001980 - $ 0.00540 | § 18.00
m [Crystal Falls $ 129.00 | $ 270 | % = |5 1273 | 578| |$ 150.21 31 | |s 0.12900 | § 0.002700 -1 - |5 12.73
¢ |Homeworks Tri-County Electric s 122.80 | § 173 |$ 4.01 |5 1750 | S 5.84 $ 151.88 32 | |3 u.12280}$ 0.001730 - 5 0.00401 | § 17.50
i |Wisconsin Electric (Western U.P.) $ 137.71 | 4.65 | % (4.08)| 5 9.47 | $ 591 | |$ 153.66 33 || |s 013771 | § 0.003470 1.18 | § (0.00408)| $ 9.47
i |Detroit Edison Company 5 13554 | $ 719 | § (0.20)| 8 6.00 | $ 594 | |§ 154.47 34 (] 0.13554 | $ - 719 | $ (0.00020)| $ 6.00
m | Wyandotte $ 139.75 | S 3298 - s 550 | $ 594 | |§ 154.48 35 | |3 0.13975 | $ 10.001968 132 | % - s 5.50
m |Marquette Light & Power $ 135.00 | $ 1.77 | § (1.65)| $ 1650 | 606 |$ 157.69 36 [ 10.13500 | $ 0.001771 - |s (0.00165)| & 16.50
m [Norway $ 13090 [$ 248 |5 10.00 | $ 13.00 | $ 626 | |$ 162.64 37 [ 0.13090 | $ 0.002480 | - |8 ocoi000)% 13.00
m |Negaunee - $ 139.20 | $ 3.00 | § 5.00|$ 14408 646 | |$ 168.06 38 HE 013920 | §  0.003000 - |3 0.00500 | § 14.40
¢ |Alger Delta Electric $ 149.00 | $§ 262 |5 - 5 2500 | S 7.06 H 183.68 39 | |5 0.14900 | § 0.002620 - - S - S 25,00
¢ |ontonagon County REA 5 187.00 | $ 2795 |5 16.50 | § 20.00 | $ 9.05 s 235.30 40 | |$ 0.18700 | § 0.002750 - $ 0.01650 | § 20.00
i |Upper Peninsula Power (Central U.P.) 5 209.27 | $ 480 |% - $ 15.00 | $ 916 5 238.23 a1 [ 0.20927 | § 0.004800 - 3 - S 15.00
_ _ _ . IS | S
Note: Prepared by TCL&P for internal use only. Rate information obtained from utility websites and telephone calls/e-mail's to respective billing departments. Some rate information
may contain estimates and judament was used for selection of the best rate to be used in comparison. Based on winter/fall of 2016 hilling information. Analysis does not include low
income surcharge because of it being a pass through to the State of Michigan.
| ] _ N : N -
¢ [Cooperatives o B = —
Municipals ) | - -
i |Investor Owned | |




Note: Prepared by TCL&P for internal use only. Rate information obtained from utility websites and telephone calls/e-mail's to respective billing departments. Some rate information may
contain estimates and judgment was used for selection of the best rate to be used in comparison. Based on winter/fall of 2016 billing information. Analysis does not include low income
surcharge because of it being a pess through to the State of Michigan,

Cooperatives

Traverse City Light & Power \ |
Michigan Electric Rate Survey - December 2016 1,200 KWH - | B B -
|
[ PA 295 PA 295
SMALL COMMERCIAL PA 295 PSCR Availability Tax Total | | Energy Rate Per kWh Rate | Monthly Rate PSCR Availability
_ - [ L L _ | ]
¢ |Presque [sle Electric & Gas S s 3.10 | $ (1.57)| $ 16.00 | S 6.74 119.13 1 | |$ 007905 |5 s 3,10 | $ [0.00131)| § 16.00
m |Zeeland BPW $ 5 7.00 | $ 7.20 | $ 1450 | $ 758 133.96 2 BE 0.08140 | $ $ 7.00 | $ 0.005997 | $ 14.50
m |Chelsea Light & Power $ $ 1.00 | $ 720 | $ 20.25 | 8.47 149.60 | 3 | |3 0.09390 [ $ s 1.00 | $ 0.00600 | $ 20.25
m [Harbor Springs s s 286 | $ 1560 [$ 836 [$ 8.49 149.91 4 HE 0.09550 | $ s 286 | § 0013 | $ 8.36
| i |Northern States Power Company /Xcel | § $ 057 |3 (5.26)| 3 1150 [ § 8.54 150.96 | 5 HE 0.11300 | 3 5 0.57 | § (0.00438) | $ 11.50
¢ |cherryland Electric Cooperative $ |'s 164 | § 9.60 | § 1750 | $ 871 153.81 | | 6 1 s 00997 | $ 164 | $ 0.00800 | § 17.50
i |Detroit Edison Company il 5 7.19 | § (0.24)] $ 878 8% 15832 | 7 BE 0.11136 | $ 5 7.19 | (0.00020)| $ 8.78
¢ [Thumb Electric s $ 357 % (12.10)| $ 13.75 | % 8.97 158.39 8 | 1§ 012017 [§ - s 357$ (0.01008)| $ 13.75
m |Charlevoix s $ 3.68 | 2567 [§ 12.00 | $ .08 160.47 9 | |3 0.09170 | § s 3.68 | § 0.02133 | $ 12.00
| i |American Electric Power/Indiana Michigan $ |8 2068 | § 1067 | $ 6.25 | 9.11 160.95 10 HE 0.09520 | $ s 20.68 | § 0.00882 | $ 6.25
i |Alpena Power Company $ 267 | $ R 7.00 | $ 5.17 162.03 1 B 011932 [§ - |3 267]5 - |8 700
m |Gladstone $ 554 | § 432)| $ 800 |% 932 | | 164.58 12 | |s 0.12170 | $ $ 554 | % {0.00360)| $ 8.00
m |Marshall s -8 588 | % 15.50 | $ 9.38 | 165.64 13 | |s 0.11240 | § $ - |8 0.00490 | $ 15.50
m Traverse City Light & Power $ e (173) § 13.00 $ 9.40 165.99 14 [ 012110 $ 3 =S (0.00144) $ 13.00
m |[Hillsdale Board of Public Works $ $ 8.21 | $ - |38 13.26 | $ 9.40 | 166.05 - 0,11265 | $ s 821 | $ - |35 13.26
i |Wisconsin Public Service (Menominee) s S 644 5 (2.28)| $ 25.00 $ . $.45 | 167.01 | 1§ 0.10700 | $ s 6.44 | § (0.00150) | $ 25.00
c |GreatlakesEnergy BN s 476 $ 19.80 | $ 32.21 | § 9.63 170.08 | |3 0.08540 | § $ 476 | 5 0.0165¢ | $ 32.21
m |Coldwater Board of Public Utilities $ $ 3.76 | $ 9.30 [ $ 11.00 [ $ 9.96 | 175.98 |3 0.11830 | § $ 376§  0.0077486 | % 11.00
¢ |Cloverland Electric Coopertive S $ 337 |8 2.94 | $ 10.00 | $ 1019 | | 180.07 | |$ 0.12214 | § 5 3.37 | § 0.00828 | $ 10.00
m|UAnse B s $ 6.80 $ (6.60)| $ 10.00 | $ 10.31 182,15 | | |$ 013470 | $ $ 680 | § {0.00550)| $ 10.00
m |Bay City Electric L&P s 5 261§ (3.88)| 8 27.50 | § 10.34 | 182.61 | I's 0.12170 | § $ 2.61 |8 (0.00323)| S 27.50
¢ |Midwest Energy Cooperative s s 176 & 6485 2200 | $ 10.39 183.53 | 1§ 0.11908 | 5 § 1.76 | § 0.00540 | § 22.00
¢ |Homeworks Tri-County Electric s s 131§ 4.81 | $ 24.00 | _1045| |§ 18457 IRE 0.12000 | $ $ 131§ 0.00401 [ 24.00
m [Crystal Falls $ $ 3.24 § - |3 12.73 | $ 10.56 186.61 | |3 0.13340 | $ 0.0027 | § - |8 - |8 12.73
m [Niles Utilities Department . s 3 - 8 803 |% 2100 % 1060 | | 187.23 RE 0.12300 |5 N I 0.0066937 | $ 21.00
i |Consumers Energy . s 9.45 § (8.28)| % 20.00 | 5 10.85 191.68 | |8 013303 $ 845 |5 (0.00688)| $ 20.00
m |Holland Board of Public Works S S 25.50 | § - S 22.46 | S 11.16 197.24 | I's 0.11510 | $ $ 1.50 | § - s 22.46
m [st Louis B B $ 409 | $ - |8 15448 1124 | 198.49 | |$ 0.13977 | § § 409 | % - |3 15.44
m |Lowell Light & Pawer s 5 15.80 | § 28.68 | $ 2175 | § 11.32 | | 199.95 NRE 0.10200 | § $ 1580 |$  0.02390 | $ 21.75
m LansingﬁcardofWater&L'rght 5 S 9.46 S 225 | $ 2400 | S 11.52 203.59 ] 0.13030 | $ 0.0024 | 6.5800 | § 0.001873 | § 24.00
i |Wisconsin Electric (Western U.P.) $ B 14.11 | § C(490)[$ 14798 11.82 | | 208.80 | |s 0.14414 | $ s 1411 | § {0.00408)| & 14.79
m [Wyandotte s $ 965 8 - s 17.67 | $ 11.90 | | 210.17 | |3 0.14246 | $ 0.001968 | § 7290000 |5 - |3 17.67
m |Dowagiac $ $ 17.23 | § 835 |3 19.18 | $ 12.21 215.69 | |3 0.13227 | § 3 17.23 | § 0.00696 | $ 15.18
c |Alger Delta Electric $ 248 | $ - |8 25008 12.23 216.11 RE 0.14700 | § $ 248 | $ E 25.00
m |Negaunee s 1113 | $ 6.00 | $ 20.80 | $ 12.30 217.27 | |s 0.13920 | § s 1113 | § 0.00500 | $ 20.80
m |Norway $ 10.66 | $ 12,00 | $ 35.00 | $ 12.88 227.62 | |3 0.130%0 | $ s 10.66 | § 0.0100C | $ 35.00
m |Sturgis $ 12.44 | § 456 |3 31,00 | $ 12.89 | |8 0.13904 | $ B $ 1244 | % 0.0038¢ | $ 31.00
m |Grand Haven Board of Light & Power 5 - $ 6.24 | § 50.00 | $ 12.99 | |$ 0.13360 | $ $ - S 000520 | $ 50,00
i |Upper Peninsula Pawer (Central U.P.) $ 8.24 | $ ) 5 13.66 (e 0.16865 | $ $ 824 |5 - |3 17.00
m |Marquette Light & Power s 194 | $ (1.98)| $ 3 1386 | | I 0.15500 | $ 0.0016 - $ (0.00165)| $ 45.00
¢ |Ontonagon County REA B 1.85 | 8§ 19.80 | S 15.29 |1 |8 0.17100 | $ 185 | § 0.01650 5 28.00

Municipals

Investor Owned




Note: Prepared by TCL&P for internal use only. Rate information obtained from utility websites and telephone calls/e-mail's to respective billing departments, Some rate information may
contain estimates and judgment was used for selection of the best rate to be used in comparisan. Based on winter/fall of 2016 billing information. Analysis does not include low income
surcharge because of it being a pass through to the State of Michigan,

Traverse City Light & Power L | | i
Michigan Electric Rate Survey - Decemher 2016 , || . | | |
| || | |

- PA 295 PA 295

LARGE COMMERCIAL Energy Demand PA 295 PSCR Availability Tax Total | Rank | Energy Rate Demand Per kWh Rate Monthly Rate PCR Rate Availability

| _ _ _ 1 - =

¢ |Presque lsle Electric & Gas $ 874.61 | $ - $ 310 |$ (14.41)| $ 3500 | $ 5390 | |$ 952.20 1 | s 0.0795 | 5 - 13 - s 310 | % (0.00131)| $ 35.00
m |Zeeland BPW & 47410 | § | s 65.00 | § 65.97 | S - S 36.30 $ 641.37 2 | |$ 0.0431 | $ 11.00 | $ - 5 65.00 | $ 0.005997 | § -
m Traverse City Light & Power 5 649.00 3 s - s (15.83) § 15.00 $ 38.89 5 687.06 3 [ % 0.0590 $ 1295 § - S - S (0.00144) $ 15.00
i | American Electric Power/Indiana Michigan s 705.65 | $ 5 2068 | § 97.7% | § 17.45 | $ 5049 | | § 892.06 4 | |8 00842 | 5 6.64 | % - s 2068 | $ 0.00889 | § 17.45
m | Harbor Springs B 5 555.50 | $ S 286 | § 143.00 | § 1311 | % 4287 | | % 757.34 | 5 | |§ 0.0505 | $ 12.00 | § - S 286 |35 0013 |§ 13.11
| m |Holland Board of Public Works $ 646.80 | $ $ 47.95 | § - |8 22483 43.03| | $ 760.24 | 6 | |$ 0.0588 | $ 12.19 | § - |3 4795 | § = S 2246
m | Coldwater Board of Public Utilities $ 591.80 | $ s 2744 |8 85.23 | § 18.00 | $ 4335 | | $ 765.82 7 [ 1% 0.0538 | $ 13.00 | $ = |8 27.44 | % 0.0077486 | $ 18.00
m |Chelsea Light & Power s 1,03840 | $ $ 1.00 | § 66.00 | $ 40.00 | $ 68.72 | | § 1,214.12 8 | |3 00944 | $ - |5 - s - 1o0$ 0.00600 | $ 40.00
m_ Niles Utilities Department . 5 638,00 | $ $ - |5 7363 |5 i 4270 | |§ 754.33 9 | |$ 0.0580 | $ 1450 | 5 - s - 18 0.0066937 | $ -
m_|Bay City Electric L&P ) $ 708.40 | $ $ 2615 (35.53)| $ 49.50 | $ 4350 |$ 768.48 10 | |$ 0.0644 | $ 1460 | $ - 1% 261|%  (0.00323)| 5 49,50
m | Charlevoix S 555.50 | $ S 3.68 | S 235.29 | § 42,00 | $ 50,19 s 886.66 11 [ | & 0.0505 | $ 10.90 | § - |5 368 |% 002139 | § 42.00
m | Hillsdale Board of Public Works $ 77275 | $ $ 821|% - |3 51.00 | $ 4982 | | $ 881.88 12 | |$ 0.0703 | $ 11.06 | - 1% 821|$ - |$ 5100
‘m |Marshall - B $ 776.60 | $ $ - s 53.90 | $§ 15.50 | $ 5076 | | $ 896.76 13 | |$ 0.0706 | $ 10.87 | $ - 1% - |3 0.00430 | § 15.50
i |Detroit Edison Company s 48741 | $ $ 3039 | § (2200 5 13.67 | $ 3176 | | § 561.03 14 | |$ 0.0443 | $ 2188 | $ - |8 3039 | $ (0.00020) § 13.67
i |Wisconsin Public Service (Menominee) |$ 1177003 $ 6.44 | § (2090 $ 25.00 | $ 7125 | | $ 1,258.79 15 | |3 0.1070 | $ - |§ - s 644 | $ (0.00130) $ 25.00 |
¢ _|Cherryland Electric Cooperative $ 1,066.67 | $ 1.64 | $ 88.00 | $ 3450 |§ 7145 | |$ 1,262.26 16 | |3 0.0970 | $ = |% - |8 164 |3 0,00800 | $ 34.50
i |Alpena Power Company $ 811.80 | $ $ 2178 - |8 30,00 | $ 53.04 | |§ 937.01 17 | 1§ 0.0738 | § 1030 | $ - |3 4217 | $ = | 30.00
i |Northern States Power Company / Xcel |$ 124300 % $ 057 % (48.18) $ 18.25 | § 7282 | | § 1,286.46 | | 18 | |$ 0.1130 | $ - |5 - |3 057 | $ {0.00438)| § 1825
¢ |Thumb Electric $ 1,321.87 | § $ 357§ (110.88) | $ 13.75 | § 7370 | | $ 1,302.01 19 (L 0.1202 | $ - |8 - |5 357 [ % (0.01008)| $ 13.75
_c_|Great Lakes Energy S 717.09 | § s 476 | $ 258.38 | § 80.00 | % 6367 |$§ 1,124.90 20 | 0.0652 | $ 7.00 % - |8 476 | $ 0.02358 | § 80.00
¢ |Homeworks Tri-County Electric |$ 77000 8§ $ 4738 44.11 | $§ 7850 | § 5612 | | § 99146 21 [ 0.0700 3% 12003 - 1$ 4273 | $ 0.00401 | $ 78.50
m_|Gladstene - $ 1,338.70 | § $ 554 | § (39.60}| 9.00 | $ 7882 | § 1,392.46 22 [ 0.1217 | $ - |8 - |3 554 | & ~ (0.00360) | $ 9.00
i |Consumers Energy S 1,054.28 | § s 5538 | § (75.68)| § 30,00 | $ 63.84 | § 1,127.82 23 I 0.0958 | $ 9.15 | - S 55.38 | § (0.00588)| $ 30.00
m St Louis B 5 892.10 | § $ - 7020 | $ - 1§ 32.20 | $ 59.67 | |§  1,054.17 24 [ 00811 | § 1237 |$ - |5 7020 | 5 - s 32.20 |
m |Sturgis 5 756.80 | S S 12.44 | 41.80 | $ 90.00  $ 54.086 $ 955.10 25 [ |5 0.0688 | § 16.75 | $ - S 1244 | 0.00380 | § 90.00
m |Negaunee $ 988.90 | § $ 1113 | $ 55.00 | $ 6678 | § 67.31| | § 1,189.12 26 (R 0.0899 | $ 9.55 | $ ) 1113 | $ 0.00500 | $ 66.78
m_|Grand Haven Board of Light & Power s 863.50 | § $ - |8 57.20 | § 50.00 | § 5824 | | § 1,028.94 27 | |$ 0.0785 | § 15.00 | $ - |3 - |3 0.00520 | $ 50,00
m |Lowell Light & Power ) s 1,122.00 | § 5 15.80 | $ 26290 | § 2175 | $ 85,35 $ 1,507.80 28 S 0.1020 | § - 5 - 3 15.80 | § 0,02390 | $ 21.75
m [Lansing Board of Water & Light 5 915.20 | § $ 9218 |5 20,60 | §  50.00 [ $ 6468 | | $ 1,142.66 29 | |$ 0.0832 | § 1176 | & 0.0024 | $ 65.78 | $ 0.001873 | $ 50.00
< |Midwest Energy Cooperative 5 1,337.01 | § $ - 178 |8 59.40 | $ 38.00 | $ 86.23 | | $ 1,523.40 30 [ 01215 | $ - |5 = |8 176 | % 0.00540 | $ 39.00
m |L'Anse ~ $ 1,481.70 | § | $ 6.80 | $ (60.50) $ 10.00 | $ 8628 | | $ 1,524.28 31 | |3 0.1347 | § = 1§ - s 6.80 | § {0.00550)| $ 10.00
¢ _|Cloverland Electric Coopertive S 1,34354 | § $ 337 (% 91.08 | $ 25.00 | § 87.78 S 1,550.77 32 [ 0.1221 | § - § - 5 337§ 0.00828 | $ 25.00
m |Wyandotte $ 1 990.00 | $ $ 2894 |5 - 1§ 4158 | § 63.63| | % 1,124.15 33 (L 0.0900 | § 14.00 | § 0.001968 | $ 7.29 | § - |3 41,58 |
m_|Crystal Falls $ 750.20 | § B $ 60.08 | § - |s 166.26 | $ 5859 | |$ 1,035.14 34 | |$ 0.0682 | $ 1841 | $ 0.0027 | § 3039 | $ - |3 166.26
m |Dowagiac $ 1,454.87 | $ $ 17.23 | § 7654 | $ 1818 % 94.08| | % 1,661.99 35 [ 01323 |5 = |8 - |8 17.23 | § 0.00696 | $ 19.18
i |Wisconsin Electric (Western U.P.) $ 1,585.54 | $ s 1411 (S (44.88)| $ 20.10 | $ 95.03| | % 1,678.90 36 [E 0.1441 | 5 - 1% ~ | % 1411 (% {0.00408)| $ 29.10 |
m |Norway B - $ 1,439.90 | § B 5 10.66 | $ 110.00 | $ 3500 | $ 9573 | | % 1,691.29 37 1 |3 0.1309 | $ ) - |5 10.66 | § 0.01000 | $ 35.00
c |Alger Delta Electric $ 1,287.00 | $ 5 48.26 | 5 - |5 - |6 8012 | |$ 1,415.38 | 38 1 1% 0.1170 | % 11.00 | $ - | 48.26 | § - s -
i |Upper Peninsulz Power (Central U.P.) $ 1,130.36 | $ 5 83.21 | § - |s §9.52 | & 7699 | |$  1,360.08 | 39 1 1% 0.1028 | $ 13.19 | § - s 83.21 | § - |5 6952 |
m_|Marguette Light & Power $ 1,155.00 | $ - s 17.82 | § (18.15)| $ - s 63.28 | |$ 1,223.95 40 | |$ 0.1050 | $ 20.00 | § 0.0016 | § - |5 {0.00165)| $ -
¢ |Ontonagon County REA 5 1,199.00 | $ 5 19.25 | § 18150 | $ - |5 8399 | |$ 1,483.74 41 (E= 0.1090 | § 1640 | $ - s 19.25 | § 0.01650 | $ -

c |Cooperatives

m |Municipals

Investor Owned

73




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2017

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light and Power Board
From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller
Date: March 7, 2017

Subject: Quarterly Financial Report

Enclosed in your packet are the second quarter financial statements for the Electric and Fiber Funds.

Electric Utility Fund

As of December 31, 2016 (50% through the fiscal year) operating revenues — sales are at 46.02% of budgeted
operating revenues. Overall revenues have decreased compared to the prior year relating to the decrease in PCR
rate over the prior year (in December 2015 the rate was $.001957 and in December 2016 the rate was
$(.001439)) along with higher kWh consumption in the residential class causing that revenue line item to
increase.

Total operating expenses are at 47.99% of budget year-to-date, or very nearly on-budget, with purchase power
costs at 48.01% with all expense line items within 5% threshold of an expected 50% of expenses incurred.

Net income through the second quarter is $846,291, which is approximately a $321,000 decrease over the prior
year.

Cash flows shows approximately $1.6M expended in capital assets, primarily for LaFranier Transmission Line
Replacement Project, Pole Replacement Project, Orchard Heights Overhead to Underground Conversion Project
and normal line extension and improvements.

Fiber Fund

Revenues in the Fiber Fund are 36.59% of budgeted operating revenues while expenses are 49.82% of budget
year-to-date. Budgeted revenues are less than anticipated because of reimbursements relating to the WIFI
System invoiced near fiscal year end and revenues from the endpoints needed for the AMI System postponed
until the subsequent fiscal year. WIFI operations and maintenance is at 78.75% of budget relating to Merit
Network expense incurred relating to internet feed for the WIFI system, a primary expense of this line item.
The Fund has a net loss or change in net position of $(83,329).

74




(ueSiyory A1) 9sa0ABA T, JO 310 3y Jo nupy Juduoduwo) V)

dINMO0d ANV LHDI'T ALID ISYHAVIL

16Z°LSO'TL wosod PURIOL,  F6ZIGI0T S SIUDUI)SIAUL PUE YSED [RJO ],
9C80ET vl pRIaLnsaru ¥96°061°C MO[INO paLIRIa(g
SEF9Z9°9¢ sjasse Teydes ur paysoau]
wommsod 19N 0ST0STFS SJOSSE [£10],
“F68°600'8S $]9SSE JUILIND-UOU [EIO],
TTELESTS 1ou ‘pareroaidop Suieq spsse [ender)
$60°600°C ssa1301d ur uononnSUO)
FI6°€9€91 sanIIqer [elo ], 61F°6L0°T sjuowaAoIduI pue] pue puer
689 juswIaA08 Areunnid wWoIy Snp - SIOUBAPE ULID}-SU0T
£09°SLTF1 sopIIqer wao) Suo[ [BI0L  (LLTRET 1085€ 1gouaq Juomikojdwaisod 1o
S$}OSSE JULIND-UON]
6¥79L0Y1 Aujqer| uoisuad JoN
PS1°661 soouosqe payesuadwo)) 95€°077°9T $)ISSE JUILIND [BIO],
SOIM[IQEI| WAd)-5u0]
SET9¢ sosuadxo predaig
17£°880°C SIVIIGEI] JUILIND [EI0 ], 9L6°098°T SOUIOIUDAU]
6L6T6S T =200
#8L°01 saxeL
669°€T1 Jusurwroaod Arewnd o) angg I 7AR =3 1S910]UL PONIOY
- saou2sqe pajesuadwory CORTLLT (pun,] 1940 PUR JYSIT) SIUNOIIE J]qU29[[OoUN JOJ
- SNUIADIL PAULIBIUL) €01°6LT$ JO SIUBMOI[R $S3] “IoWOIsn)
IvL Y01 susodop J2WoIsNy) SOIqBAISOSY
T1L'ESY SaLI[Iqel] Jayjo pue Sasusdxs panIy 0E6°660°CT SIUSUNSIAU]
0L1°90%°1 olqeAed SHUN0I0Y F9E160°L S swseambs yses pue yse)
SII[IGEI] JUILIND) $)ISSE JUALIND)
NOILISOd L3N ANV SHLLITIIVIT SLASSY
9107 ‘I€ YAAINHDAA
NOILISOd LAN 40 INHIWHALVLS
ANNJ DRELDATH

75



%108 RESHYRT'TI O0'ErE Tl 000°8Z9°€T (662°L0L) T9L'0S0°TI TO0°ErE T (LA1'88) LTT'ROS'1 0E0°01L'1
%0t'8 vLI'OTGE 978°65€ 000°98Z'F 895°80T 65T°161 9T8'65¢ SCH o ovL'E SLI'PF
%ETYT L6808 €0I'1LE 000°811°1 (es2) 98¢'1LT £01°1LT 0£9'r SE0'oY $99°05
%ILL'0S 019°€90'T 06£'€T1°T 000'L81't (sLs'vor) S96°L8S'T 06£°€T1'E (s81°99) 188°88€ 96£°TTE
%9 v 788 PSH'T 9II'LSE'] 000°Z1¥'Y (688'c59) 900°119'Z 9I1°LS6°L (zoL'ss) 089'76< 8L6'SEE
%01°SE LESTLL'T £9T' 6671 000°TLT Y (619°061) 180°069°1 £9P° 6641 (so¥'sL) 9ps0ET 8E1°551
%56 e 0L0'¥T 0£6'T1 000°LE (908°5) 9EL'81 0£6'T1 (z89) 61EY L£9'E
%00'LY YLO'LLY'T 9TETEY'1 000°0L1°€ (eLv'85) 66€'155°1 9T6'T6Y'T LOE'LY 100'11€ 60£'8LE
i0/AICTH . = - (580°8€0°€) $80°8£0'€ = (1L1%28) 1L1°%TS e
%EL'STT (oe£'c08'1) 9€CHOTE 000°'10¥°1 068'St1°¢ SHi'ss 9LEVOTE 09¢'59¢ (Lr1's11) ZIT'9rE
%99S 8T0'€TE eIty 000°StL TLG'6YE 000°TL TLE'ITY 0Zs'9y 000'%T 0T5°0L
%8€°06 YO1'€TT 9¥5°9TT 0596t $29°11 816°011 945'97T (gz1'11) 1€8° ¥ S0L'EE
%I LF (#98'TLL'6T) 9€T'889°LT 00119¢'LE (+97'+08) 00S'T61'81 9€T'889°LT (€59'ssT) G66T'ET0'E 9F9'L58'T
%0128 (098'oL1) 0FE'T61 002'69€ (LLetert) LIL'TFE 0FET61 (€zz'11n 16T I€1 £90'0C
%01°CT (6¥6°8¢€) 1S0'11 000°0S L8Y'0T 95 IS0°TT (s) S -
%05°6T (L¥8'611) £5T1°08 000°0L1 (8z8'vc) 18648 €SI'0% SIL'6 (cLt'6) e
%08'1€1 $68°TCT $68°76 000°TL (zsg1TD) L¥T9IE S68°6 (1g6'0z1) £3T651 7se8l
%I11°TL (080°zE) oTH'y 005°9€ €€ 88 0Zr'y - " -
%81'SL (088'8) 0T8'1E 00L'0F (L1'e) LES'SE 0Z8°1€ (1) oLt SLY'L
%¥E 68 (£77°c0€'T) LL9'T06'T 006'+0Z'€ re'Le) $70'666'1 LL9'T06'] (€r6'r7) £6+'+97 6FS'6ET
%STES (s65°01) S06°81 005°5E g1y 970°€T S06'81 095 895°T 8ZI'¢
%66'65 (£s€700Z°'1) £F9°66L'1T 000'000'€ (605°18) ZS1'188°1 £79°66L"1 (6e1°52) STO'6HT 98t'$TT
%06'0T (8s1) a4 00T S1 9T T 8¢ = 8¢
%8 LE (z88'17) 8I1'cl 000°s€E (615°€1) LE9'9T 8I1°¢l Ty 8r9'y 190°¢
%E0°LY (L91°12) £E0°Eh 00T'+9 T68L 181°5€ €e0ey (899'1) 98t'c 8181
%818 (g90'cy) LEG'9T 000'0L (s90'9) 100'€€E LEGOT €58 91y 610°S
%E0'9t (I18L'T67'81) 61T'F65'S1 000°L88'E (0rs'Ls7) 6SLIS8ST 61T'P6S'ST (L8t's1) SIS'LI9T 870'865'T
%06'SS (291°9¢) 3E8'SH 00028 (yz6'1) €OL'LY 8E8°Sh (o1} ¥10'8 866°L
%6L'8Y (158'66) 6¥1'56 000°$61 (¥19'¢) £9L°86 6¥1°56 G $69°91 $69°91
%8Y'TS (poL'6p1) 962'¢91 000'51¢€ (ogz'TD) TES'LLI 962'591 (959°9) 06€°LI FEL'OL
%509 (90£'018°5) $69'656't 000°0LL"01 (L60'T1) 06L°1L6Y $69'656'Y 90t'6T P86 FHL 06EPLL
%96 ¥t (L06'888°8) £60°19T°L 000°0S1°91 (PLO9LT) 991°LES'L €60'19T°L (€89°6€) 610°19T°1 9€E'1ZE'
%LI'Sy (158°205'c) 6¥1°L90°¢ $  000'5LE'9 s M vor'sy SPL'S10'E 6¥1'L90"¢ s W 6es'T $  pI¥6e0s SL8'99S $
398pnq (d1qetoagju) 1emay Pipng UIIPJIA ABd X J011g [EnoYy EALISEE] Ty | 1EIX 0L [endy
oo, QEI0AR] IJEP 03 JLIX papulImy EP 0} JEIX JIEP 01 JBIX 91EP 01 JB3 X TP 01 YIUOTA JJEP 01 IUOTA] EP 03 YIUOTA

uostiedwo)) 9)EP 03 JEIX 0} PIpng

uosSLIEdWOD) JBI X 0} JBIX

uostedwoy) YIuoAl 03 qIUopy

«©
M~

sasuadxo Jomod aseyoing
S19BIUOD [RINNENE
SeD [[ypue]

el [0 JoARy J[[oH
tueld [eo [[eqdure)
2ulgqIn], uonsnNguIo)
ouIgmJ, puim TL-W
SIoWO0D) A2U0lg
adpug Swsue

OSIN

51500 Aoede)

sasuadxo Jomod aseyomd uopN
2suadxd uoIEIIUID

SINUIAI [EJO],
sonuaAds Sunesadouou [ej0],

SIOSSE JO O[ES UO SSO[/UTED
SUIOJUT JS2IUT
SIUSWSSINQUITRY
SWOdUT [BIUSI [0
SWosUI [BIUSY

$INuIAdL Sunerddouon

5InuIAd Sunesado Jayjo o],

SNOSUE[IISIA

awosur OSIA

S199p Peq JO A19A093Y

desos jo areg

Jurqqol pue SSIpUBYRIIN

SIUNOJSIP PO
SINUIA Sunesado PDYPQ

SI[ES - SINUIAL Sunesado [ejoL

SIS pres
Sunysi 10ong
Auopne 211qng
[ewsnpug
jEblaliniilve]
[eQuapIsay

$I|BS = $INUIA BunEsdQ

910 ‘1€ YIIWIDIA AIANT AOTHA THL YOI
(QILIANVNND) TVALDV ANV 1I0dNd - SISNIIXT ANV STANTATY IO TTNATHIS
AN DTILOATA

(ueSgary ‘A1) astaAed], Jo A1) 93 jo Jiup) Juduodwo)) y)

HJIAMOd ANV LHOIT ALID ASHIAVAL



6576691 $ 16798 S 0SS'THS'T s W (e16'12€) $  0ITBOI'T $  16T'9t8 s M (oz1L91) §  LIL'SIZ S LGS'St g
I0/AICH 000°SLI - 000°SL1 % = ® - - =
0 65T°028'1 162948 0§5°99¢'T (616'128) 01T'891'1 16T°9¥8 (oT1°L91) LIL'SIT LGS'8Y
%66'LY +09°78Z'e1 OF6 IFS 9L 0SS'FE0'SE (spe'ze1) 16Z'+20°LY 9F6 1891 99t* 11 TRE'LGL'T 6+0'608'T
%859'Sy 96E°TLE'T S09°ZS1°1 000°525'T SE9'EL 0L6'8L0°L S09°TSI'T TLTT1 8T8'6LI 101°261
%L’ 10£°966 669°€L8 000°0L8°T 669°€T1 000°0SL 669°€LS . 000°6T1 000°5ZTL
%88'0S TLl'ze 8TE'EE 005759 £$9'T 989°0€ AR LL 660°S LIS
%610 L6S 165 €0T°96¢ 008°L81°1 SILPET 88 19¢ £0T'965 ¥60°'LS 0LY'E8 £95°0v1L
%L6'SY 000'8¥T 000'8€T 000'98¥ (15¥°92) A & 000'8€T 108°€l £8€'8S S81°TL
%8P S LEG'YOE SIP'PST 05€'65S ¥8T°11 6CI°ErT (A4 €LETI sTL'ty 860°sS
%¥9'8t YSY'¥TT IYSTIT 000°LEY 69€'LT SLI'S81 9¥STIT Tr'sl £29°6T Sr0'sSy
%6161 S0L'PLE'L $  Z¥S1I61 §  057'988°¢ s W (L9s'Le) §  60I'6¥6°1 $ s8] S M LvL'o $  96goTy $  cvILTy $
193pngq (arqeaoaByun) [endY wipng DU IBDX J0L1Y [enpRyY uaRINQq ABIX JOUg ey
JO o4 IqEI0AB] ANEP 03 JBIX papuwry JIEP 0} JEIX NEP 01 ABDX EP 0} LI K J1EP 03 YIUOTA JJEP 0] YlUoy JJEP 03 YIUOTA]

uosuedwo)) AEP 03 JLIX 03 33Fpng

uosLIedwo)) I8 X 01 JBIX

uosuedmwo)) YIuoy 0} YIuoAl

77

uomsod jou w 33ueyD
Ul SIYSUEBA ],
SIOJSURI] 910J9q WOAU]

sasuadxd [el0,
uonenadoq
233 A1y
souemsuy
sasuadxd PO
2suadxd UONBIISTUTWPE [EIIUID
JINAIIS QN T
Sununodde Jomwoisn)
UOISSIWSUBL]
uonnquIsiq

9102 1€ YHIWHDHU AAANT AOTHAd THL 404

(QALIANVNND TVALDV ANV LIDANE - SASNIIXT ANV STANTATI 40 ITNATHDS
ANNA DTILOATE

(ueSnpdrpy ‘A1) Is1aABLY, JO A3 93 Jo pup) Juauedwo)) v)

HAIMOL ANV LHOIT ALID ASYIAVIL



990°0 $ 1900 $  IIT6I'SPEIl 8§ T8%6T00IL'T §  CISEELILL TS6'FES'ST 1e0],
2|qeaydde jou siqeandde1ou  p1TL6 ITE 00°0CS 0L a|qeaydde 1ou ajqeaydde sou (oxyrew) 51500 Anoeded VAN
0L0°0 0L0°0 ¥8°6T6°T1 LTLESE TILYSL 196°'1¢ ougm[, pulp, TL-W
9110 911'0 95'ST6TEY' T 16°80€'8LE 0€6'8L8°T1 1€5'€9T°E s1owoy) Aou0g
8500 190°0 TTEOI'ILT 96'¥99°08 £LI'8E9'Y 6E6 ES SeD [[Ypue]
Sor'o £¥0'0 €8T 6611 OLLEL"SST F1$°€8T YL 918'979°¢ QUIqM, uonsnquiosy
900 900 I€06E°€TIT 1L'S6E°TTE 6L1°E91°FE 980°861°S 2IATY I[2d
1900 9¥0°0 YTOLI'LSE'T L¥'8LE8EE 000'L66'1€ 18€°90€°L €4 Troqdure
900°0 +00°0 LEOTS'6SE B TAN 4 000°91¥°09 000°821°01 wenuo) [esae[g
£5T0 (1L0°0) 09 FOFF0T'E LTTITOPE S00'TLIEL (ToL'pL8t) [ei01qng
a[qeordde jou olqeondde ou (60" LY¥6°6E) SE0STEL a[qearjdde jou 9jqeondde jou UOISSTWSURL],
9|qearidde jou spqeanddesou  LL¥OIEI $8'090°C 91qeordde jou ajqeandde j0u QULIdAIOM,
SYE'0 (890°0) T6'9¥TTETE L0'106'0E€ S00°TLI'EL (zoL'pL8'Y) OSTIN
MooV OSTIAL
ep 03 JLL uom 1502 1500 nep puowm JIMOd AISYHOUNA
43 103 YMY o3 10} gAY P 0} JTIX Appuon 01 Jeak HA HMM
Jad 1507y Jad 3500y
*S|ENIdIE A[QIUOW JO ISNEIIC JUIWIILIS ITUOIUT 0] IDISE JOU OP SINUIAIY :IJON
98L'T06'ST $ €0T'$HS'T 3 19F 1LT'891 FLB'TIT'LT NNES @O
0000 £L61°0 SLET'O 19000 1610 PL6T0 S0L'9P1 TOLYT TECTHL sr1°sTl SI[3IT J92XS PUE PIEX
(8£00°0) 91800 LLLOTO (z£00°0) ST800 TSLO0 SESYSO0'S 095°€6L 098°620°59 0LT'9¥S'01 §9[BS [elnsnpu]
(ev00°0) 78010 GEOT0 (#+00°0) 6801°0 SYOT'0 6V0°9€9°L €50°612'1 198°61S"EL GIL°0L9°TT SIS [eroIowIuos)
(5€00°0) § L6010 § 5010  § (¥10000) § _bLOTO § _0901°0 § _b6rto0'E $__888°0IS § _S08'RLG'8T LEL'GIS'Y SO[ES [BRUAPISIY
JIUBLITA Rep 0} 2Eep IUBLIBA puowt uowt ANUIAIL ANUIAII aup puow SATVS
TP 0} JLIA FUSTTITE § 0] JTIX Auow Juak Joug LN JJEP 0} ABIX Apuogy 01 3835 HAAM HA
SIEQANUIAIN SIEQ/ANUIAIN

9102 ‘1€ YAFWADAA AAANT dOMYHd THL HOL

ANNFI DIELOATH

NOILVINJOANI AdVININATIINS

(ueSiganpy ‘A1) as1aaea], Jo AN ayp Jo yup) jusuodwo)) v)

YTAOd ANV LHOI'T ALID ASHIAVIL

78



TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER

(A Component Unit of the City of Traverse City, Michigan)

ELECTRIC FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments of City fee

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Customer deposits paid
Rental income received
Reimbursements received

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Purchase of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments
Interest and dividends

Net cash used in investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

18,517,558

(2,103,858)
(13,111,920)

(1,034,901)

2,266,879

(3,191)
36,240
94,895

127,945

(1,624,838)

(2,250,274)
50,153

(2,200,121)

(1,430,135)

8,521,499

7,091,364

79




1+€°919°1 $ uomisod 1au jEjo], $96'6 MOPINO PALIIA]
19°TEI°SET paloLnsaIun
80TTIS] §19s5E [B)1dEd Ul PAISIAU] 6129691 SJISSE [EJOL
£+8°6S SIPIIqQeN B0, S0TIIST §39558 JULIND-UOT [€30],
LTH8E Auniqer uotsuad 3oN CSLPEY 1 10u “pajeroaidop Sureq syesse [ende)
L68°T $20udsqe pajesuadwo) SSH91 ssa1801d ur uonONIISUC))
SIUI[IQEI] ULId) Suor] $)ISSE JUALINI-UON]
61881 SIIIQEI] JUILIND [BIO], 110°S81 SJISSE JUILIND [EIO L,
- Jusuruaaod Areurud o3 angg g5¢ sosuadxa predaig
0LT ¥l ANUIAIL PAUIESUN) 956°S K1ojudaug
T69°E SOU[IQEI] JOYI0 PuE Sasuddxd ponuddYy 1L£°9 O[qEALDDDI SJUNOVOY
LS8 $ 3[qeAed sjunody 9TETLI $ Sjuo[eAInba ysea pue yse)
SIPIQEL] JUALINT S]ISSE JULIND)
NOILISOd LAN NV SHILITIAVI'T SLISSY
9107 ‘1€ YAFWIADIA

NOILLISOd LIN 40 INFJWIALVLS

aNNA Y3FId

(weSiyary] *A10) IssAkAL Jo A1) 213 Jo Jrun) Juanodwio) V)

HHAMO4 ANV LHOIT ALID HSHIAVIL

80



6SE'CEL S IFE9P9T  §  T86TIST S
B 0L9'6TL'I 0L9°6TL T
65E¢El (67£'€8) (889°917)
I/AITH (000sLI) - {000°sL1)
(149°14) (6Tees) (889°1t)
2 (006'3¢) - 006°8€
%000 (009) “ 008
%00°0 (oot'8€) . 00t'8€
(1+L'T) (6Te'es) (885°08)
%8 6F L8IF0T LIL'T0T Y0690+
%IE 6l #0S™EL 96711 000°S¥1
%000 00+91 - 00+'91
%S8TE 6TL'8 1Ty 000°¢1
%8665 100°T 6656°T 000°S
%80°'1€ $96 437 00%°1
%000 00§°T 3 008'T
%S0E SOF'TE S6¥7T 0069
%LST8 LLS'S £TH'9T 000°CE
%SL 8L 0S8 0s1°¢ 000
%68'9T1 (690 69T'1 000°1
%6169 SSLLT LLS6E TE9'LS
%LT6E 69L°CH £0€'8T TLO'TL
i0/AIC# (826'907) $8E°6IT 91£'97E
I0/ALCH - E "
%65°9€ (826'907) $ 88E°611 $  olg'ote $
ja8png jo (d1qea0Akyu)) [enoy j1espng
EriGLERNER | qraoAey JJEP 0} JBI X prpudwy

aea4 jo pud ‘uonisod JaN

Ieak jo Sutuuidaq ‘uonisod joN

uonisod jou ur 93uey)

IN0 SIIPSUBL],

saysuel) aojaq uonisod 3ou ui ASuEy)
sanudAd sunerdouou [ejo],

ANUIADL 15903U]
SHUIUIISINGLUIY
SINUIAL Sunetddouon

sso] sunerdo
sasuadxs sunesado [epo ],

uoneroadaqg

a7 Ao

[EIU [ A

asuEUdUIEW puE sieday]

JduEINSU

Juaudo[aAap [eUOISSJO1]

[ENIOB0UGD PUE [RUOISSIJOI]

d0URUIUIEW PUB SUONEIAQ [T

2IBMPIEY PUE 2IBMIJOS

sanddng

syyaueq a3uLL]

$38eM pue SILIB[RS
sasuadxd sunperdQ

$INUIANM gunesddo [v10],
Juiqqol pue SursIpuByISIA]

$921AI9S 10 SaFIeyD
sanudAda gunesadQ

9107 ‘1€ YATNIADAA AIANT AOTHAd THL Y04
NOILLISOd LIN NI SEONVHO
ANV SASNAIXT ‘SAONTIATY 40 INTWIALV.LS

NN FTILL

(uesiyarpy ‘A1) asadara ], Jo A1) ays jo jup) juduodwo)) v)

HIMOd ANV LHOIT ALID ASYTAVIL

81



